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------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------PART I
When used in this Annual Report, the words "believes," "anticipates" and
"intends" and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking
statements. Such statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties
that could cause actual results to differ materially from those projected. See
"--Important Factors Regarding Forward-Looking Statements." Readers are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements,
which speak only as of the date hereof. The Company undertakes no obligation
to publicly release any revisions to these forward-looking statements that may
be made to reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof or to reflect
the occurrence of unanticipated events. Readers are urged, however, to review
the factors set forth in reports the Company files from time to time with the
Securities and Exchange Commission.
Item 1. Business
Overview
Cost-U-Less operates mid-sized warehouse club-style stores in U.S.
Territories and foreign island countries. The Company enjoys significant
benefits from the extensive experience of its management team in the warehouse
club industry. As a result of prior relationships with industry leaders such
as Costco, the Company's officers and key employees gained competencies
related to the operation methods, purchasing strategies and management
information systems employed by warehouse clubs. During the Company's early
years, its key personnel developed and implemented a business plan whereby the
Company purchased merchandise at retail from existing large-format warehouse
clubs and then resold the merchandise, at attractive margins, through stores
located in relatively remote and underserved markets. By selling only products
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proven to be successful at established warehouse clubs, the Company minimized
its need for in-house buyers and was able to keep corporate costs low. The
Company utilized this strategy for several years and maintained its focus on
operations pursuant to an effective and low-cost business model. However, as
sales volume grew, the Company became able to source its merchandise directly
from manufacturers, thereby significantly reducing its cost of goods. Over
time, the Company augmented its corporate buying team as it began to
increasingly tailor its product mix to its specific markets and further
realize the benefits of direct purchasing. The Company then began to build a
functional corporate infrastructure to support anticipated growth.
Capitalizing on management's experience with the warehouse club industry,
the Company opened its first retail warehouse store in 1989. In 1992, the
Company initiated its expansion by opening stores in relatively remote island
locations. After experiencing success with its mid-sized store concept, the
Company began experimenting in late 1992 with similar stores in various
mainland markets while continuing to open stores in island markets. Facing
increasing competition from larger discount retailers and warehouse clubs in
its mainland markets while continuing to succeed against similar competitors
in its island stores, management decided in 1995 to return its focus to its
core island markets. In 1996, while further refining its island store concept,
enhancing inventory control and management information systems, adjusting its
island store product mix to include higher-margin items and local merchandise,
and developing a prototype island store design, the Company continued the
process of closing nearly all its mainland stores. The Company's founder and
current Chief Executive Officer was formerly a principal owner of a
merchandise broker and manufacturer's representative that worked exclusively
with Costco. The Company has added three other management persons and five
store managers who are former employees of Costco or the merchandise broker.
The Company believes it is now well positioned to pursue an aggressive growth
strategy focused on accelerating the roll out of its island stores that
started with the opening of two new stores in Fiji in the second half of 1998
and one new store in Curacao, Netherlands Antilles that opened March 2, 1999.
As of March 2, 1999, the Company operated eleven warehouse club-style stores:
two in Hawaii, two in Guam, one in St. Thomas, one in St. Croix, one in
American Samoa, two in Fiji, one in Curacao, Netherlands Antilles and one in
Sonora, California. In addition, management has completed a lease transaction
on a property in St. Maarten for a 36,000 square-foot store and has agreed to
terms and is awaiting business license approval in Aruba for a 27,000 squarefoot store, both in the Netherlands Antilles. Management
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is also negotiating lease transactions for stores in Barbados and Grand
Cayman, in the Caribbean; Tahiti and Papua New Guinea in the South Pacific;
and several stores in New Zealand for openings in 1999 and 2000.
The Company intends to concentrate its future expansion efforts on island
markets, which it believes offer significant opportunities for growth. To
achieve its anticipated growth, the Company plans to employ a multi-element
business strategy designed to leverage the Company's core competencies in
opening and operating stores in distant and diverse locations, while
capitalizing on the inherent features of island markets. Moreover, the Company
intends to continue utilizing a "first-mover" advantage. By opening stores in
markets that other warehouse clubs and discount retailers have not yet
entered, the Company believes that it will be better able to achieve
significant market share and develop name recognition and customer loyalty,
thus further discouraging entry by large-format discount competition.
Accordingly, the Company's future growth involves expanding into relatively
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untapped markets, and the Company has identified a number of islands
throughout the Pacific and Caribbean in which larger format warehouse clubs
have not and are not expected to open stores.
Industry Overview
Traditional warehouse clubs focus on both retail and small-business
customers, with store formats averaging approximately 115,000 square feet (the
Company's stores average 29,300 square feet). These retailers typically (i)
offer a range of national brand and selected private label products, often in
case, carton or multiple-pack quantities, (ii) provide no-frills, self-service
warehouse facilities with pallet-stacked product aisles, and (iii) charge
annual membership fees. Prior to the inception of the membership warehouse
club concept in the mid-1970s, the dominant companies selling comparable lines
of merchandise were department stores, grocery stores and traditional
wholesalers. Warehouse clubs positioned themselves as low-price leaders in the
communities they entered and thereby quickly gained market share as their new
merchandising concepts and aggressive marketing techniques led to a more
competitive retail environment. Although the Company employs many of the
retailing methods associated with the larger companies that principally make
up the warehouse club industry, including Costco Companies, Inc. ("Costco"),
BJ's Wholesale Club, Inc. and Sam's Club, a division of Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.
("Wal-Mart"), the Company operates fewer stores, locates its stores in smaller
geographic areas with less concentrated population centers and relies to a
greater degree on long-haul water transportation than do such companies.
The Company believes that its target island markets are similar in many
respects to those found in the United States before the introduction of the
first warehouse club stores; however, island markets are characterized by
distinct attributes that, management believes, lead to certain competitive
advantages for the Company. Logistical challenges are presented by operating
individual store units in remote locations, whether in terms of information
flow or transportation of goods. Meeting these challenges requires specially
tailored systems and methods. Issues related to receiving local government
approvals, dealing with island real estate and site selection, and
constructing weather- resistant buildings that have been properly formatted
for efficient retailing are difficult to overcome. Retailers, and thus
consumers, in island markets generally have limited experience with modern,
more effective retailing methods and, therefore, the Company believes, an
opportunity exists to capitalize on competitive advantages inherent in
employing such techniques. In addition, while the typical U.S. warehouse club
customer has virtually unlimited access to popular U.S. brand-name products,
the Company believes these products are carried by relatively few local island
retailers. As a result, an unusually strong yet largely unsatisfied demand for
certain products may exist. Moreover, each island or region demonstrates
unique consumer preferences and thus may require effective retailers to
conduct regional research and to incorporate flexible localized merchandise
purchasing policies in order to offer a diverse selection of local products,
as well as popular U.S. brand-name products. Based on the increasing
acceptance of the traditional warehouse-club concept in mainland markets, the
Company's experience and operating results in current island locations, as
well as its market research of potential markets, the Company believes that
significant opportunities exist in island markets for expansion of its
warehouse club-style store concept.
The Company has identified its prototypical target market as an island with
a minimum population of 40,000 and a Gross Domestic Product of at least $125
million. The Company estimates that at least 30 Pacific and
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Caribbean islands meet or exceed these criteria. Based on its estimates, the
Company believes these islands currently represent as many as 90 potential
locations for its island concept stores.
Business Strategy
The Company's goal is to expand its operations significantly in island
markets by leveraging its island-operations expertise, utilizing modern
systems and merchandising techniques, offering competitive prices while
maintaining attractive margins, providing a localized product mix and
benefiting from low overhead costs. The Company has identified a goal of
opening an additional three stores in 1999 and six stores per year thereafter.
Concentrate Expansion Efforts in Island Markets. The Company's expansion
strategy focuses on opening mid-sized warehouse club-style stores in island
markets throughout the Pacific and Caribbean. The Company believes these
markets offer significant opportunities for growth. Specifically, island
markets are often characterized by (i) significant geographic and logistical
challenges, (ii) local competition with minimal experience in modern retailing
methods, and (iii) a demand for U.S. brand-name products that have limited
availability. In addition, the Company believes that traditional large-format
warehouse club and discount retailers are generally unwilling to adapt their
multi-unit, continent-based operations to meet the unique characteristics and
small populations of island markets.
Leverage Island-Operations Expertise. Capitalizing on its experience in
opening and operating retail warehouse club-style stores in remote U.S.
Territories and the Hawaiian Islands, the Company has developed core
competencies in overcoming the inherent challenges of island market
operations. The Company has refined a mid-sized building prototype designed to
endure severe island weather conditions. This prototype also incorporates low
construction costs, specifications that can be easily and quickly replicated,
and standardized equipment designed either to be readily repaired by island
employees or efficiently monitored off-site by equipment vendors. Moreover,
the Company has made a significant investment in its information systems and
communication networks, enabling corporate management and store buyers to
receive daily sales and inventory information and maintain regular contact
with in-store management and employees. In addition, through its long-standing
relationships with steamship lines, and with its present volume of deliverable
goods, the Company negotiates what it believes to be competitive
transportation rates while selecting efficient shipping routes and costeffective freight techniques, including the use of both a Company-operated
cross-dock depots and independently operated distribution facilities.
Utilize Modern Systems and Merchandising Methods to Successfully Enter
Target Markets. The Company believes that merchants in target markets often
have not adopted modern retail operating efficiencies, including computerized
cash registers and inventory-tracking devices, state-of-the-art refrigeration
and air-conditioning equipment, efficient shelving and display racks, improved
forklifts and sophisticated security systems. Moreover, the Company believes
that many locally operated stores do not have access to the vendor network and
distribution channels developed by the Company. As a result, the Company
believes that it will be able to successfully enter remote island markets by
using its advanced systems to provide a superior shopping environment for its
customers by (i) monitoring sales and inventory levels and using this
information to respond rapidly to changing consumer preferences and (ii)
offering a level of product selection and customer service often not found in
most of its local competitors' island stores.
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Emphasize Strong Margins While Maintaining Everyday Low Prices. In addition
to providing a pleasant shopping atmosphere, the Company is able to sell its
products at prices that it believes are lower than those offered by its local
island competitors, yet are still above those that could be charged in
mainland markets. By leveraging its retail operating efficiencies and access
to volume-purchasing discounts, the Company believes it is able to acquire
some products at a significantly lower cost than that paid by other island
retailers. The Company passes along much of these savings to its customers
through "low price leader," "everyday low prices" and "dare to compare"
pricing policies. In addition, unlike most warehouse clubs, the Company does
not charge a club membership fee, further providing cost-effective shopping to
its customers. However, due to the demand in island markets for the Company's
goods, the lack of meaningful price competition and the generally high price
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levels found in such markets, the Company believes its prices are often higher
than those charged on the mainland by warehouse clubs and discount retailers,
enabling the Company historically to achieve higher margins (16.7% for fiscal
year 1998) than those achieved by mainland warehouse clubs and discount
retailers (typically 10-12%).
Use Localized Product Sourcing Yet Derive Benefits of Centralized
Purchasing. An important element of the Company's marketing strategy is to
specifically cater its product selection to each distinct island market. To
this end, the Company conducts market research through its vendors, store
managers and resident employees to ascertain the preferences of each
particular locale, including determining which national brands are favored and
which regional and ethnic items are desired. The Company's buyers then procure
a majority of these products through the Company's centralized purchasing
department, thus deriving the benefits of volume purchase discounts,
streamlined distribution and enhanced selection. The remaining products,
including locally produced items that are available only in a particular
region, are generally purchased by store managers and Company buyers directly
from suppliers located in the region.
Capitalize on Efficient Facilities, Controlled Operating Expenditures and
Cost-Effective Labor. The Company seeks to minimize costs throughout its
operations in an effort to decrease overhead and increase margins. These
savings are achieved through the use of efficient facilities, including stores
that (i) do not incorporate expensive fixtures such as floor tiles and false
ceilings, (ii) are energy efficient as a result of modern refrigeration and
air-conditioning equipment, (iii) encourage self-service and feature
sophisticated scanning systems, thereby reducing labor and shrink expense, and
(iv) maximize selling-floor space, thus reducing overall space requirements
and rental expense. In addition, the Company has been able to limit
advertising expense by relying primarily on "word-of-mouth" publicity in
island markets because of its significant market presence in relation to most
of its competitors. Further, the Company's efforts at controlling inventory
shrink expense have contributed to increased margins. Finally, although the
Company believes that it generally pays its employees above-market wages and
is thereby able to attract and retain high-quality employees, it further
believes that island wages are generally lower than mainland wages and thus
result in decreased labor costs.
Maintain Relationship With CDC. The Company has developed a relationship
with Commonwealth Development Corporation ("CDC"), a development finance
institution of the U.K. government. Organized in 1948, CDC is engaged in
economic development activities in overseas countries, including venture
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capital and other investments, and has significant interests in the Pacific
Islands and Caribbean regions. Kula Fund, a private equity fund established in
1997 for 12 Pacific Island countries and managed by a CDC affiliate, is
financed by CDC, Asian Development Bank, European Investment Bank,
International Finance Corporation, Societe de Promotion et de Participation
pour la Cooperation Economique/Proparco and Fiji National Provident Fund. The
Company sold 160,000 shares of Common Stock to Kula Fund, an affiliate of CDC,
in a private placement (the "Concurrent Reg. S. Placement") at $7.00 per
share, and also sold to Kula Fund, for nominal consideration, a warrant to
purchase 117,000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $8.40 per
share (120% of the public offering price), containing standard net issuance
provisions, exercisable at any time for a period of four years. In addition,
the Company elected Ashley Emberson-Bain to its Board of Directors. Mr.
Emberson-Bain has been employed by CDC since 1986 in a variety of management,
investment and staff positions. Since 1995, he has been principally
responsible for overseeing CDC investments in the Pacific Islands. The Company
believes that CDC's strong ties to, and knowledge of, the Pacific Islands and
Caribbean regions, and its presence in most areas where the Company either
operates or plans to operate, will strengthen the Company's business and
business strategy. See "Market for Registrant's Common Stock and Related
Shareholder Matters."
Expansion Plans
General. The Company's expansion plans focus on opening new stores in
foreign island markets. The Company believes such island markets offer
significant opportunities for growth because they are often characterized by
(i) significant geographic and logistical barriers to entry, (ii) existing
higher-priced local competitors with minimal experience with modern operating
processes in purchasing, distribution, merchandising and information
technologies, and (iii) a demand for U.S. brand-name products that have
limited availability.
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The Company resumed expansion efforts in fiscal 1998 after concentrating its
efforts in fiscal 1996 and 1997 on (i) improving internal operating
efficiencies, (ii) standardizing its island business model and related
strategies, and (iii) closing nearly all of its U.S. mainland stores. The
Company opened three stores in fiscal 1998 (one in June in St. Thomas and two
in Fiji, in July and November), and plans to open four stores in fiscal 1999
(including one store in Curacao, Netherlands Antilles, which opened March 2,
1999). Overall, the Company anticipates opening 26 new stores during the fiveyear period ending fiscal 2002 throughout the Caribbean and Pacific. The
Company expects to finance new stores initially with the net proceeds of its
initial public offering in July 1998 (the "Initial Public Offering") and later
with a combination of borrowed funds under a line of credit with Seafirst Bank
and cash flow from operations. If the Company is unable to obtain adequate
funds from debt financing or internally from operations, the expansion program
could be curtailed or otherwise adversely affected. Furthermore, due to
difficulties in certain economies in the South Pacific arising from the "Asian
Crisis" and in reaching acceptable lease terms for new stores, the Company
reduced expected store openings in 1999 from six to four. See "Important
Factors Regarding Forward-Looking Statements--Ability to Manage Growth and
Uncertainties Associated With Expansion Outside U.S. Territories."
The Company has identified approximately 23 target markets in the Pacific
Islands and the Caribbean (for approximately [26] stores) as a result of its
in-house analysis of demographic and income factors. Company personnel have
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visited eight of these markets for purposes of site selection and review of
governmental requirements. In addition, management has completed a lease
transaction on a property in St. Maarten for a 36,000 square-foot store and
has agreed to terms and is awaiting business license approval in Aruba for a
27,000 square-foot store, both in the Netherlands Antilles. See "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations-Overview--Store Openings."
Mid-Sized Format. The average size of the Company's eleven stores is
approximately 29,300 square feet, while the traditional warehouse stores found
in the United States average approximately 115,000 square feet. The Company
has developed three store "footprints" based on a 27,000, 36,000 and 42,000square-foot facility, which is adaptable from anywhere between 25,000 to
45,000 square feet. The Company's prototype was developed in consultation with
architects and designers who helped design many of the warehouse stores
operating in the United States today. The prototypes were used in the
construction of the two stores in Fiji, the store in St. Thomas and Curacao,
and the stores under development.
Site Selection. The Company believes that the reduced size of its stores, as
compared to typical large-format discount retailers, will enable it to operate
profitably in markets far less populated than typical warehouse clubs. The
Company chooses potential store sites by comparing the demographics of its
current store base to the demographics of the target market.
Because of the unavailability of detailed demographic studies by third-party
consultants, the Company's market analysis is performed in-house. The Company
compares the results of its analysis with the demographic statistics of its
successful island stores. If the demographics for a targeted location compare
favorably with those of its current island operations, the Company includes
the target location as a potential site for expansion. Because of the
unavailability of current demographics, estimates of future sales potential
can vary significantly from the lack of data. See Important Factors Regarding
Forward-Looking Statements--"Uncertainties Associated With Expansion Outside
U.S. Territories."
Once the Company identifies a target location as a possible site for its
expansion and is satisfied with the political and regulatory environment in
the target location, the Company compares the prices charged by local
competitors to the prices the Company would need to charge in order to achieve
an acceptable return on its investment (after factoring in cost of the
product, cost of freight, duties, port charges, transportation and taxes). If
the Company's market research indicates that the Company would be able to
charge an adequate price for its products, the Company commences a formal
search for a suitable store site. Desirable attributes of suitable sites
include a central location in a population center of at least 40,000,
sufficient space for the Company's facility, including parking and loading
docks, access to utilities and acceptable geological conditions for successful
construction.
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Store Openings. The Company prefers to lease its facilities, which are
generally built to Company specifications. To this end, the Company has
developed a standard lease that it uses as a starting point for its lease
negotiations with each potential landowner/developer. The Company routinely
negotiates a 10-year lease with at least two five-year renewal options. The
Company typically does not incur construction expenses for the building
itself, however, the Company provides each developer with construction
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specifications and a project timeline. The Company plans to source
construction materials for its buildings to help control lease costs and
ensure building quality. The Company estimates that it takes approximately
eight months from execution of the lease to store opening. The use of the
Company's prototype plans helps ensure that the building will be properly
configured for installation of the Company's fixtures. The refrigeration
equipment will be installed under the supervision of the equipment vendor,
with the Company's crew installing other equipment. The Company anticipates
that in fiscal 1999 its required investment to open a new store will be
approximately $1.8 million, including approximately $250,000 for opening
expenses, $800,000 for store fixtures and equipment and $750,000 for
inventory. The Company expects to carry approximately $1.5 million of
inventory, including $300,000 of inventory in transit. Typically, 50% of the
Company's inventory is vendor-financed, resulting in a $750,000 average perstore inventory investment by the Company.
The new St. Thomas store, which opened in June 1998, has been constructed at
a total estimated cost of $2.9 million, including $600,000 for furniture,
fixtures and equipment. The former St. Thomas store has been closed and the
equipment and inventories will be relocated to the St. Maarten and Aruba
stores under development. In addition to the new St. Thomas store, which was
built and is owned by the Company, the St. Maarten store will also be built
and owned by the Company. To finance the construction of the St. Maarten
store, which is estimated to cost $3.0 million, a construction loan of $2.0
million is currently being negotiated. The Company generally does not intend
to own the land or buildings for its stores. To the extent, however, that the
Company believes it to be advantageous to purchase land for new store sites or
to construct new store buildings, the Company may use its cash resources or
existing financing sources during the construction period and subsequently
attempt to obtain permanent financing after the stores are opened. The ability
of the Company or its potential future landlords to secure financing for new
stores is subject to the availability of commercial real estate loans; failure
to secure adequate financing on a timely basis would delay or potentially
prevent new store openings.
Store Economics
The Company benefits from attractive store-level economics and favorable
returns on investment at its island stores, which it believes will help drive
and support its planned expansion. The Company's seven island stores open
during all of fiscal 1998 generated annual average net sales of approximately
$17.6 million, average net sales per square foot of $596, average annual per
store contribution of approximately $993,000 and average annual per store
contribution before depreciation of approximately $1.1 million. The average
investment in buildings, equipment and leasehold improvements as of December
27, 1998 in the seven island stores was approximately $1.4 million. The
average investment in inventory, net of accounts payable of approximately 50%,
was $750,000 at December 27, 1998. The store contribution return on average
island investment for fiscal 1998 was 46%.
Merchandising
Store Layout. The Company has incorporated into its prototype store many
standard features found in domestic warehouse clubs that had been previously
unused in most island markets. Store layout and interior designs were planned
and calculated using computer models, with the goal of maximizing the sales
per square foot and providing uniformity among the stores. Further, the
Company believes that its use of loading docks, comparatively large freezer
and refrigeration space with state-of-the-art equipment, efficient shelving
and display racks, computerized cash registers and inventory tracking systems,
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and multiple checkout lanes helps give it a competitive advantage over its
island competitors. Additionally, because of the damage often caused by severe
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weather in its island markets, the Company has designed its prototype to
withstand the severe wind and heavy rain associated with hurricanes, typhoons
and tropical storms.
The Company has used considerable care in developing its store layout, which
features a logical flow to encourage shopping of all departments. Customers
enter through large roll-up metal doors and utilize a large shopping cart or,
in some instances, a rolling flat-bed cart for purchases in larger sizes or
quantities. All items are within easy reach on the floor or, because of the
Company's reduced store size, on a shelf above the sales floor. When ready for
check out, the customer proceeds to the check-out area in the front of the
store, which usually features 10 lanes. During a typical store visit, the
average customer will spend approximately $50. Various forms of payment are
accepted, including food stamps and debit and credit cards, and credit is
extended to some local businesses and government agencies. Utilizing a nofrills approach, the stores display items in steel racking, usually on the
vendor's pallets or in open cases, to maximize warehouse space and minimize
labor costs. In-store signage reinforces the basic value image, while stores
generate customer excitement through the use of end-cap displays featuring new
merchandise and special promotions, food demonstrators offering product
samples, and ongoing introduction of new items.
The Company has also attempted to minimize costs through the design of its
prototype. The Company does not use expensive fixtures such as floor tiles and
false ceilings, and thereby lowers construction and maintenance costs. In
addition, the Company's refrigeration supplier has designed specialized
refrigeration units using modern equipment that allows for cost-effective
monitoring, maintenance and repair, and keeps energy costs to a minimum. The
Company has also developed standardized construction specifications. As a
result of the Company's planned expansion and through extensive negotiations
with suppliers, the Company has achieved competitive prices on its building
materials, such as metal exterior panels, building components, store equipment
and shelving, thus allowing the Company to control material costs on a perfacility basis and help ensure uniformity of materials throughout its
facilities while reducing the Company's lease expenses.
Product Categories. The Company typically carries approximately 2,500 stockkeeping units ("SKUs"), compared to the 3,500 to 5,000 SKUs estimated by
industry sources to be carried by traditional warehouse clubs. The stores do
not have certain departments found in most large-format warehouse clubs, such
as apparel, automobile tires and prescription drugs. All stores feature the
following main product categories:
Food-Perishables. Meat, produce, deli, dairy and frozen items represent
approximately 28% of a typical store's net sales. The "reach-in" freezers
and coolers are substantially larger than those found in the stores of most
of the Company's local island competitors.
Food-Nonperishables. Dry grocery goods, including soda, wine, beer,
liquor, candy and snacks, represent approximately 42% of a typical store's
net sales. Also included in this area are ethnic and specialty items
catering to local consumer demands.
Nonfood. Other nonfood items comprise the remaining 30% of a typical
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store's net sales, and include tobacco, sundries, health and beauty,
office, hardware, electronics, housewares, furniture and sporting goods.
Purchasing. The Company balances its product mix by providing popular U.S.
brand names together with local ethnic items found in each island region.
Approximately one-third of the Company's items are produced locally or
purchased through local suppliers in each market. Offering locally purchased
merchandise enables the Company to better serve its island customers and offer
an innovative variation to the warehouse store format. Store managers are able
to purchase product that may be available only on their particular islands.
The Company's buyers monitor sales and inventory levels on a daily basis from
all of the Company's stores, which allows the Company to quickly spot product
trends and discontinue slow-moving products. Moreover, in an effort to cater
to retail customers who generally purchase products for home use, the Company
carries products in various product sizes, including single packages, "bulk
packages" and mid-sized "value-packs." This strategy differs from traditional
warehouse clubs, which typically stock only products in bulk quantities to
satisfy their wholesale client base. The Company purchases merchandise from
manufacturers and suppliers on a purchase order basis exclusively.
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Pricing. The Company strives to be the "low price leader" for the markets it
serves. The Company does not charge its customers a membership fee, which
allows all consumers to receive the benefits of the Company's value-pricing
philosophy. The Company provides everyday low prices that are often lower than
regular prices offered at most retailers, such as grocery stores, and are
generally intended to be slightly lower than those offered by mass merchant
discount retailers, such as Wal-Mart and Kmart, that operate in some of the
Company's island markets. In order to ensure that the Company has the lowest
prices available in a particular market, the Company regularly compares prices
and products being offered by the Company's local competitors. Generally,
given the economic efficiencies the Company can bring to bear with its ability
to purchase product at larger quantities as well as its efficient distribution
system that allows it to take advantage of optimal freight and transportation
costs, the Company has a competitive advantage when pricing most of its
products compared to local competition. However, if the comparison of local
competitors' prices discloses that the Company's prices exceed those of its
local competition, store managers have the authority to reduce prices to
remain competitive. This decentralization of pricing decisions allows the
Company to respond quickly and efficiently to competitive challenges in each
of its island markets.
Operations
Distribution and Inventory Management. The Company typically buys directly
from manufacturers in large quantities (full truck loads whenever possible).
The Company currently uses three distribution facilities: a Company-operated
facility in Union City, California and independently operated facilities in
Port Everglades, Florida and Auckland, New Zealand. The Company has no written
agreements with these distribution facilities, but instead has month-to-month
service relationships. Prices are on a per-pallet basis and are based on
volume. At each distribution facility, merchandise is received, consolidated
and crossdocked, and ultimately shipped in fully loaded containers to the
Company's stores. Each store has a "lane" designated to it in the depot; when
a full container load is queued into the lane, it is loaded by forklift into a
cargo container, which, when filled, is then delivered to the closest port for
shipment to the designated store. Management has significant experience and
long-term relationships with steamship lines and, with its present volume, has
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negotiated what it believes to be competitive transportation rates. The
Company does not have a warehouse, but controls inventory levels in stores by
maintaining sufficient back stock in stores combined with efficient cross-dock
facilities. For perishable items, the Company uses independently operated
consignment depots that are for the Company's exclusive use. Each supplier of
perishable items, such as meats, frozen foods, fruits and vegetables, pays a
storage charge for use of such depots based upon the amount of space used for
storage of each supplier's goods. The Company gives its suppliers of
perishable items notice of its projected supply needs, and these suppliers
deliver product to the depots. However, the Company does not accept delivery
of the product, nor is it responsible for payment, until it places a final
order. Once the final order is placed, the goods are removed from the
consignment depot and loaded onto refrigerated shipping containers located at
the consignment depots, at which point the goods are deemed delivered. The
Company then transports the shipping containers to the nearest port for
shipment to its island stores. By using this procedure, the Company minimizes
loss of perishable product due to over-orders because it does not "purchase"
the goods until it is certain of the needs of its stores.
Operating Systems. The Company believes that its operating systems provide a
competitive advantage over local retailers. Each Company store is outfitted
with adjustable metal shelving that allows the Company to vary the display of
its product based on each location's specific consumer needs. Each island
store has backup generators designed to protect perishables and the store's
security system during disruption of electric service caused by severe weather
conditions that can occur in island markets. The Company has designated the
Sonora, California store as a testing facility to test various store layouts
and display patterns, which enables management to review and monitor various
store designs and innovations before they are implemented in island locations.
In its new stores, the Company will utilize a specialized refrigeration system
comprised of several, smaller compressor rather than one large one. Because
the system uses many different compressors, the loss of one compressor does
not shut down the entire refrigeration system. At the first indication of
system failure, the refrigeration supplier notifies a local service provider,
who visits the Company's facility and replaces the faulty component. This
system also helps minimize the loss of product associated with damaged
refrigeration units.
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Management Information Systems. The Company considers management information
systems to be a key component of its strategic plan. The Company tracks all
inventory movement, sales and purchase orders by SKU number, vendor number,
store and date. The Company currently uses electronic point-of-sale equipment
in all stores, and in the depot located in Union City, California. All data
from each location is sent via modems, or the Internet, to the computer system
located at the Company's corporate headquarters in Bellevue, Washington. The
Company implemented a new corporate computer system on January 31, 1999, which
has enhanced, extended and improved the data capabilities of its systems. The
Company is developing the specifications for integrated systems to support
automatic replenishment of inventory and supplies, and to further improve
profiling sales and purchasing trends. The Company implemented changes in 1998
to its software to handle multi-currency and multi-measurement inventory and
purchase order functions. The Company believes that its current computer
systems will support anticipated growth at least through fiscal 2002. In order
to maintain its competitive advantage in its chosen markets, the Company uses
a corporate-wide intranet and the Internet, which allows for quick responses
to ever-changing customer needs and local retail opportunities. The ability to
quickly and consistently communicate between headquarters and store locations
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is necessary when stores are located in such remote locations. The Company's
expansion plans anticipate continued use of the intranet and the Internet to
connect its stores, thereby decreasing communication costs. The Company plans
to integrate new applications aimed at providing enhanced services, data
analysis and improved customer service, thus raising office and store
productivity. While the Company has taken a number of precautions against
certain events that could disrupt the operation of its management information
systems, there can be no assurance that the Company will not experience
systems failure or interruptions, which could have a material adverse effect
on the Company's business, financial condition and operating results. See
"Important Factors Regarding Forward-Looking Statements--Dependence on
Systems; Year 2000 Compliance."
Employee Organization, Training and Compensation. Management of each store
generally consists of a store manager, two assistant managers and one or more
department managers, depending on the store. Typically, the department
managers are assigned to two categories: merchandising and administrative. The
merchandising manager oversees the training and day-to-day operations of the
stockers, forklift operators and receiving clerks. The administrative manager
oversees the training and day-to-day operations of the vault clerks, cashiers
and security personnel, if applicable.
In order to meet its expansion goals, the Company believes it will need to
hire approximately 45 employees for each new store. The Company's goal is to
hire most of those employees from the island markets, thus creating job
opportunities for local residents. The Company attempts to promote its store
managers internally. The Company requires its store managers to complete an
approximately six-month training program in the Company's store in Tamuning,
Guam, which is used as a training facility for potential managers. New store
employees initially receive one to two weeks of training, which typically
includes working alongside individuals in comparable positions before working
without direct supervision. The Company has found that such on-the-job
training, together with the use of detailed operating and training manuals, is
an effective way to introduce new employees and managers to the Company's
systems and procedures.
The Company strives to attract and retain highly motivated, performanceoriented employees and managers by offering competitive compensation,
including bonus programs based on their performance. Store managers
participate in a manager bonus program that ties compensation awards to the
Company's overall profits. In addition, all store employees are eligible to
participate in an incentive plan whereby they receive monthly bonuses for
increased store sales and control of inventory shrink expense. Although the
Company believes that it generally pays its employees above-market wages and
is thereby able to attract and retain high-quality employees, it further
believes that island wages are generally lower than mainland wages and thus
result in comparatively lower labor costs.
Local service providers are also trained in the maintenance and repair of
the Company's refrigeration and air-conditioning systems. The Company and its
refrigeration supplier send crews to facilities during the construction phase
to install these systems. These crews work with local electricians, training
them in the operation and installation of the Company's systems. Thus, when
repairs are necessary, the Company may opt to
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use a local vendor rather than incur the expense and time involved in using a
service person from either the U.S. mainland or New Zealand.
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Customer Service
The Company brings to its island markets a commitment to customer service
that it believes gives it a competitive advantage in each of the local markets
it serves. The Company's store layout is designed to maximize floor space used
for selling product as well as to give customers a spacious feel while
shopping. Various forms of payments are accepted, including food stamps and
credit and debit cards, and credit is extended to some local businesses and
government agencies. The Company has a 30-day, no-questions-asked return
policy. Each of the Company's stores has approximately 10 checkout lanes,
which allows for quick and efficient shopping. Each store features a customer
desk where customers can have questions answered, usually by a management team
member. In addition, employees are trained to help customers locate store
products.
Marketing and Advertising
The Company generally relies on word-of-mouth advertising in order to save
on advertising and marketing costs and pass on the savings to its customers.
The Company currently spends less than 0.2% of net sales on advertising, and
in the past has utilized coupon books, direct mail advertising and newspaper
advertisements.
Competition
The warehouse club and discount retail businesses are highly competitive.
The Company historically has faced significant competition from warehouse
clubs and discount retailers such as Wal-Mart, Kmart Corporation ("Kmart") and
Costco in Hawaii and Kmart in the U.S. Virgin Islands and Guam. The Company's
competition also consists of regional and smaller discount retailers and other
national and international grocery store chains. Some of the Company's
competitors have substantially greater resources, buying power and name
recognition than the Company. The Company is targeting expansion in additional
island markets that it believes are underserved by existing retailers. The
cost of doing business in island markets is typically higher than on the U.S.
mainland because of ocean freight and duty costs and higher facility costs.
While the Company expects that the size of many of the markets in which it
operates or expects to enter will deter entry by most of its larger
competitors, there can be no assurance that the Company's larger competitors
will not decide to enter these markets or that its smaller competitors will
not compete more effectively against the Company. The Company's gross margin
and operating income are generally lower for those stores in markets where
traditional warehouse clubs and discount retailers also operate stores. The
Company may be required to implement price reductions in order to remain
competitive should any of its competitors reduce prices in any of its markets.
Moreover, the Company's ability to expand into and operate profitably in new
markets, particularly small markets, may be adversely affected by the
existence or entry of competing warehouse clubs or discount retailers. See
"Important Factors Regarding Forward-Looking Statements--Competition."
Trademarks
The Company has been granted federal registration of the name and stylized
logo "Cost-U-Less."
Governmental Regulation
The Company is subject to various applicable laws and regulations
administered by federal, state and foreign regulatory authorities, including,
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but not limited to, laws and regulations regarding tax, tariffs, zoning,
employment and licensing requirements. Additionally, as the Company pursues
future expansion in foreign countries, the Company's operations will be
subject to additional foreign regulatory standards involving corresponding
laws and regulations, in addition to customs, duties and immigration laws and
regulations. Changes in the foregoing laws and regulations, or their
interpretation by agencies and the courts, occur from time to time. While the
Company believes that it presently complies in all material respects with such
laws and
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regulations, there can be no assurance that future compliance will not have a
material adverse effect on the Company's business, financial condition and
operating results. See "Risk Factors--Risks Associated With Island and
International Operations."
Employees
As of March 20, 1999, the Company had 36 full-time employees at its
corporate headquarters in Bellevue, Washington, and 11 employees at its main
distribution facility in Union City, California. In total, the Company employs
approximately 450 people worldwide. None of the Company's employees are
covered by collective bargaining agreements.
Important Factors Regarding Forward-Looking Statements
You should carefully consider the following factors regarding forwardlooking statements and other information included in this Annual Report. The
risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones we face.
Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we
currently deem immaterial also may impair our business operations. If any of
the following risks actually occur, our business, financial condition and
operating results could be materially adversely affected.
Risks Associated With Island and International Operations
The Company's net sales from island operations represented approximately 94%
of the Company's total net sales for fiscal 1998. The Company expects that its
island and future international operations together will continue to account
for nearly all of its total net sales. The distance, as well as the time-zone
differences, involved with island locations impose significant challenges to
the Company's ability to manage its operations.
Difficult Transportation Environment. The Company's island locales require
the transportation of products over great distances on water, which results in
(i) substantial lags between the procurement and delivery of product, thus
complicating merchandising and inventory control methods, (ii) the possible
loss of product due to potential damage to, or destruction of, ships or
containers delivering the Company' s goods, (iii) tariff, customs and shipping
regulation issues, and (iv) substantial ocean freight and duty costs.
Moreover, only a limited number of transportation companies service the
Company's regions, none of which has entered into a long-term contract with
the Company. The inability or failure of one or more key transportation
companies to provide transportation services to the Company, any collusion
among the transportation companies regarding shipping prices or terms, changes
in the regulations that govern shipping tariffs or any other disruption in the
Company's ability to transport its merchandise could have a material adverse
effect on the Company's business, financial condition and operating results.
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See "--Business--Operations."
Isolation of Store Operations From Corporate Management; Increased
Dependence on Local Managers. The Company's headquarters and administrative
offices are located in Bellevue, Washington; however, ten of the Company's
eleven stores and a majority of its employees are located on remote islands.
Although the Company invests resources to hire and train its on-site managers,
the inability of the Company's executives to be physically present at the
Company's current and planned store sites on a regular basis may result in (i)
an isolation of store operations from corporate management and an increased
dependence on store managers, (ii) a diminished ability to oversee employees,
which may lead to decreased productivity or other operational problems, (iii)
construction delays or difficulties caused by inadequate supervision of the
construction process, and (iv) communication challenges. The Company will need
to invest significant resources to update and expand its communications
systems and information networks and to devote a substantial amount of time,
effort and expense to national and international travel in order to overcome
these challenges; failure to do so could have a material adverse effect on the
Company's business, financial condition and operating results. See "-Business--Operations."
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Weather and Other Risks Associated With Island Operations. The Company's
operations are subject to the volatile weather conditions and natural
disasters characteristic of the island markets in which the Company's stores
are located, which could result in delays in construction or result in
significant damage to, or destruction of, the Company's stores. In addition,
island operations involve uncertainties arising from (i) local business
practices, language and cultural considerations, including the capacity or
willingness of local business and government officials to provide necessary
services, (ii) the ability to acquire, install and maintain modern
capabilities such as dependable and affordable electricity, telephone,
computer, Internet and satellite connections in remote and often undeveloped
regions, (iii) political, military and trade tensions, (iv) currency exchange
rate fluctuations, (v) local economic conditions, (vi) longer payment cycles,
(vii) difficulty enforcing agreements or protecting intellectual property, and
(viii) collection of debts and other obligations in foreign countries. There
can be no assurance that the Company will be able to devote the resources
necessary to meet the challenges posed by island operations; any failure to do
so would have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, financial
condition and operating results. See "--Business--Expansion Plans."
Uncertainties Associated With Expansion Outside U.S. Territories. As of
March 2, 1999, eight of the Company's stores are located in U.S. territories
(the "U.S. Territories") and foreign island countries throughout the Pacific
and Caribbean. The Company's future expansion plans involve entry into
additional foreign countries, which may involve additional or heightened risks
and challenges that are different from those currently encountered by the
Company, including risks associated with being further removed from the
political and economic systems in the United States. The Company does not
currently engage in currency hedging activities. The Company believes that
because its future expansion includes numerous countries and currencies, its
exposure from any one currency devaluation would not significantly affect
operating results. The Company operates two new stores in Fiji, which was
subject to a nonviolent military coup in 1987, led by the country's current
prime minister and experienced a 30% devaluation of its currency during 1998
in relation to the U.S. dollar. Although the Fijian government adopted a new
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constitution in 1997, there can be no assurance that further political and
economic changes in Fiji will not have a material adverse effect on the
Company's business, financial condition and operating results. The failure to
adequately address the additional challenges involved with international
operations, and specifically those associated with the Company's Fijian
stores, could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business,
financial condition and operating results. See "--Business--Expansion Plans."
Governmental Regulations. Governmental regulations in foreign countries
where the Company plans to expand its operations might prevent or delay entry
into the market or prevent or delay the introduction, or require modification,
of certain of the Company's operations. Additionally, the Company's ability to
compete may be adversely affected by foreign governmental regulations that
encourage or mandate the employment of citizens of, or purchase of supplies
from vendors in a particular jurisdiction. The Company may also be subject to
taxation in these foreign jurisdictions, and the final determination of its
tax liabilities may involve the interpretation of the statutes and
requirements of the various domestic and foreign taxing authorities. There can
be no assurance that any of these risks will not have a material adverse
effect on the Company's business, financial condition and operating results.
See "--Business--Governmental Regulation."
Ability to Manage Growth
The Company intends to pursue an aggressive growth strategy, the success of
which will depend to a significant degree on the Company's ability to (i)
expand its operations through the opening of new stores, (ii) operate new
stores on a profitable basis, and (iii) maintain positive comparable store net
sales. The Company currently operates eleven stores and plans to open an
additional 23 new stores by the end of the year 2002, which represents a
significant increase in the number of stores opened and operated by the
Company. Although in prior years the Company opened new stores on a fairly
rapid schedule, it has not done so in foreign island markets at such a rapid
pace. Moreover, to date, the Company has never opened more than four stores in
any given fiscal year and has no operating experience in most of the markets
in which it expects to open new stores. These new markets may present
operational, competitive, regulatory and merchandising challenges that are
different from
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those currently encountered by the Company. There can be no assurance that the
Company will be able to adapt its operations to support these expansion plans
or that the Company's new stores will be profitable.
The Company's ability to open new stores on a timely basis will also depend
on a number of factors, some of which may be beyond the Company's control,
including the ability to (i) properly identify and enter new markets, (ii)
locate suitable store sites, (iii) negotiate acceptable lease terms, (iv)
construct or refurbish sites, and (v) obtain necessary funds on satisfactory
terms. Additionally, the Company relies significantly on the skill and
expertise of its on-site store managers. The Company will be required to hire,
train and retain skilled managers and personnel to support its growth, and may
experience difficulties locating store managers and employees who possess the
training and experience necessary to operate the Company's new stores,
including the Company's management information and communications systems,
particularly in island markets where language, education and cultural factors
may impose additional challenges. Further, the Company has encountered, and
may continue to encounter, substantial delays, increased expenses or loss of
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potential sites due to the complexities, cultural differences and local
political issues associated with the regulatory and permitting processes in
the island markets in which the Company intends to locate its stores. There
can be no assurance that the Company will be able to open the planned number
of new stores according to its store-opening schedule or that it will be able
to continue to attract, develop and retain the personnel necessary to pursue
its growth strategy. Failure to do so could have a material adverse effect on
the Company's business, financial condition and operating results.
The Company also will need to continually evaluate the adequacy of its
existing systems and procedures, including store management, financial and
inventory control and distribution systems. Moreover, as the Company grows, it
will need to continually analyze the sufficiency of its distribution depots
and inventory distribution methods and may require additional facilities in
order to support its planned growth. There can be no assurance that the
Company will anticipate all the changing demands that its expanding operations
will impose on such systems. Failure to adequately update its internal systems
or procedures as required could have a material adverse effect on the
Company's business, financial condition and operating results. See "Business-Business Strategy" and "--Expansion Plans."
Small Store Base
The Company opened its first store in 1989, opened a total of 18 stores
through March 1999, and presently operates eleven stores. From December 1994
to June 1997, the Company closed six stores, which adversely affected the
Company's operating results. Should (i) any new store be unprofitable, (ii)
any existing store experience a decline in profitability, or (iii) the
Company's general and administrative expenses increase to address the
Company's expanded operations, the effect on the Company's operating results
would be more significant than would be the case if the Company had a larger
store base, and could have a material adverse effect on the Company's
business, financial condition and operating results. Although the Company
believes that it has carefully planned for the implementation of its expansion
program, there can be no assurance that such plans can be executed as
envisioned or that the implementation of those plans will not have a material
adverse effect on the Company's business, financial condition and operating
results. See "--Business--Overview," "--Properties."
Competition
The warehouse club and discount retail businesses are highly competitive.
The Company currently competes in several of its markets against other
warehouse clubs and discount retailers, including Costco, Kmart and Wal-Mart.
The Company's competition also consists of regional and smaller discount
retailers and other national and international grocery store chains. Some of
the Company's competitors have substantially greater resources, buying power
and name recognition than the Company. While the Company expects that the size
of many of the markets in which it operates or expects to enter will deter
entry by most of its larger competitors, there can be no assurance that the
Company's larger competitors will not decide to enter these markets or that
its smaller competitors will not compete more effectively against the Company.
The Company's gross margin and operating income are generally lower for those
stores in markets where traditional warehouse clubs and discount retailers
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also operate stores. The Company may be required to implement price reductions
in order to remain competitive should any of its competitors reduce prices in
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any of its markets. Moreover, the Company's ability to expand into and operate
profitably in new markets, particularly small markets, may be adversely
affected by the existence or entry of competing warehouse clubs or discount
retailers. See "--Business--Competition."
Dependence on Key Personnel
The Company's success depends in large part on the abilities and continued
service of its executive officers and other key employees, including Michael
J. Rose, the Company's founder, Chairman of the Board, President and Chief
Executive Officer, Allan C. Youngberg, the Company's Vice President-Chief
Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer and Terence R. Buckley, the
Company's Director of Pacific Expansion. None of the Company's executive
officers or key employees, including Messrs. Rose, Youngberg and Buckley, are
subject to employment agreements that would prevent them from leaving the
Company. In addition, the Company does not currently carry key-man life
insurance. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to retain
the services of such executive officers and other key employees, the loss of
any of whom could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business,
financial condition and operating results.
Decreases in Sales; Fluctuations in Comparable Store Sales
Although sales increased 7.2% in 1998 over 1997, net sales in fiscal 1997
declined $9.9 million, or 7.4%, to $124.9 million from $134.8 million in the
prior year and in fiscal 1996 declined $4.9 million, or 3.5%, to $134.8
million from $139.7 million in the prior year. The decline in 1997 was
primarily due to store closures in the continental United States and to a
slight decline in comparable store sales, largely attributable to the Hawaii
market. The decline in 1996 was primarily due to the comparison between a 52week year in 1996 and a 53-week year in 1995 and to the closure of one store;
comparable store sales were also down as a result of the opening of a second
Guam store.
A variety of factors affect the Company's comparable store sales, including,
among others, actions of competitors (including the opening of additional
stores in the Company's markets), the retail sales environment, general
economic conditions, weather conditions and the Company's ability to execute
its business strategy effectively. In addition, the Company's expansion may
result in opening additional stores in markets where the Company already does
business. The Company has experienced a reduction in sales at an existing
Company store when a new Company store was opened in the same market. The
Company's comparable store sales increases (decreases) over the prior period
were (4.9)%, (0.5)% and 9.9% in fiscal 1996, 1997 and 1998, respectively.
These factors may result in future comparable store sales increases that are
lower than those experienced in fiscal 1998. Moreover, there can be no
assurance that comparable store sales for any particular period will not
decrease in the future. Changes in the Company's comparable store sales could
cause the price of the Common Stock to fluctuate substantially. See
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations--Results of Operations."
Impact of General Economic Conditions
The success of the Company's operations depends to a significant extent on a
number of factors relating to discretionary consumer spending, including
employment rates, business conditions, interest rates, inflation, population
and Gross Domestic Product levels in each of its island markets, taxation,
consumer spending patterns and customer preferences. There can be no assurance
that consumer spending in the Company's markets will not be adversely affected
Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

by these factors, thereby affecting the Company's growth, net sales and
profitability. A decline in the national or regional economies of the United
States and the U.S. Territories where the Company currently operates or any
foreign countries in which the Company currently or will operate could have a
material adverse effect on the Company's business, financial condition and
operating results. See "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations--Results of Operations."
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Dependence on Systems; Year 2000 Compliance
As the Company expands, it will need to upgrade or reconfigure its
management information systems. While the Company has taken a number of
precautions against certain events that could disrupt the operation of its
management information systems, it may experience systems failures or
interruptions which could have a material adverse effect on its business,
financial condition and operating results. The Company's business is highly
dependent on communications and information systems, primarily systems
provided by third-party vendors. Any failure or interruption of the Company's
systems or systems provided by third-party vendors could cause delays or other
problems in the Company's operations, which could have a material adverse
effect on the Company's business, financial condition and operating results.
Such failures and interruptions may result from the inability of certain
systems (including those of the Company and, in particular, of third-party
vendors to the Company) to recognize the Year 2000. The Year 2000 issue is the
result of computer programs being written using two digits, rather than four,
to define the applicable year. Any of the Company's computer programs that
have time-sensitive software may recognize a date using "00" as the year 1900
rather than the Year 2000. If not addressed, the direct result of the Year
2000 issue could be a system failure or miscalculations, causing disruption of
operations, including a temporary inability to process customer transactions,
order merchandise, accurately track inventory and revenue, or engage in
similar normal business activities.
The Company has substantially completed the necessary changes to its systems
and has planned to complete steps necessary to be fully Year 2000 compliant by
July 1, 1999. The most significant of which was the upgrading of its corporate
computer hardware and operating systems that was completed on January 31,
1999. The Company's failure to implement its Year 2000 corrections in a timely
fashion or in accordance with its current cost estimates, or the failure of
third-party vendors to correct their Year 2000 problems, could have a material
adverse effect on the Company's business, financial condition and operating
results. See "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations--Year 2000 Compliance" and "--Business--Operations."
Control by Directors and Executive Officers
The Company's directors and executive officers and their affiliates
beneficially own, in the aggregate, approximately 34.4% of the outstanding
shares of Common Stock. As a result, the Company's directors and executive
officers, acting together, are able to significantly influence and may be able
to control many matters requiring approval by the Company's shareholders,
including, without limitation, the election of directors and approval of
significant corporate transactions. In addition, this concentration of
ownership and voting power may have the effect of accelerating, delaying or
preventing a change in control of the Company or otherwise affect the ability
of other shareholders to influence the policies of the Company.
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Antitakeover Considerations
Pursuant to the Company's Restated Articles of Incorporation (the "Restated
Articles"), the Company's Board of Directors has the authority, without
shareholder approval, to issue up to 2,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock and
to fix the rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions of such shares
without any further vote or action by the Company's shareholders. The
Company's Restated Articles and Bylaws also provide for a classified board and
special advanced notice provisions for proposed business at annual meetings.
These provisions, among others, may have the effect of making it more
difficult for a third party to acquire, or discouraging a third party from
attempting to acquire, control of the Company, even if shareholders may
consider such a change in control to be in their best interests. In addition,
Washington law contains certain provisions that may have the effect of
delaying, deferring or preventing a hostile takeover of the Company.
On February 23, 1999, the Company's Board of Directors declared a dividend
distribution of preferred share purchase rights (the "Rights") pursuant to a
Shareholder Rights Plan. The Rights initially trade with shares of the
Company's Common Stock and have no impact upon the way in which shareholders
can trade the Company's common stock. However, ten days after a person or
group acquires 15% or more of the Company's common
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stock, or such date, if any, as the Board of Directors may designate after a
person or group commences or publicly announces its intention to commence a
tender or exchange offer which could result in that person or group owning 15%
or more of the common stock (even if no purchases actually occur), the Rights
will become exercisable and separate certificates representing the Rights will
be distributed. The Rights would then begin to trade independently from the
Company's shares at that time. The Rights are designed to cause substantial
dilution to a person or group that attempts to acquire the Company without
approval of the Board of Directors, and thereby make a hostile takeover
attempt prohibitively expensive for the potential acquirer.
Item 2. Properties
The Company currently leases all existing store locations, except its store
in St. Thomas, which the Company owns. The stores average approximately 29,300
square feet and range in size from approximately 22,000 square feet to
approximately 39,000 square feet. The store leases typically have a term of 10
years with options to lease for an additional 10 years and typically are net
leases. Two leases have fixed rental rates, and the other leases have
scheduled rental increases, either in fixed increments or based on the
consumer price index. With the exception of the Sonora store which opened in
an existing facility, all of the Company's stores have been built to Company
specifications.
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Location
Date Opened
-----------------<S>
<C>
Dededo, Guam............ May 1, 1992
Hilo, Hawaii............ August 27, 1992

Approximate
Square
Footage
----------<C>
31,200
23,000

Lease
Term
Expiration Date
-------- --------------<C>
<C>
10 years May 1, 2002
15 years August 31, 2006
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Options to
Extend
---------<C>
10 years
10 years

Kapaa, Kauai............
St. Thomas, USVI........
Sonora, CA..............
St. Croix, USVI.........
Tamuning, Guam..........
Pago Pago, American
Samoa..................
Nadi, Fiji..............
Suva, Fiji..............
Curacao, Netherlands
Antilles...............
</TABLE>

March 18, 1993
June 25, 1998
January 27, 1994
November 3, 1994
March 15, 1995

22,000
36,000
23,150
26,210
35,000

10
20
10
10
15

years
years
years
years
years

November 15, 2002
September 30, 2017
January 1, 2004
November 1, 2004
March 1, 2010

March 20, 1995
July 2, 1998
November 12, 1998

32,055
25,000
30,000

10 years February 28, 2005
10 years March 1, 2008
10 years November 1, 2008

15 years
20 years
10 years

March 2, 1999

38,711

10 years February 1, 2009

10 years

The Company has entered into an agreement to lease land in St. Maarten,
Netherlands Antilles where it will build a 36,000 square foot store. The lease
has a 25-year term with an option to extend for an additional 30 years. The
Company has also agreed to terms for a lease for a build-to-suit store in
Aruba, Netherlands Antilles, and is awaiting approval of its business license
before executing the Lease. The store will be 27,000 square feet and will be
built to Company specifications. The lease has a 10-year term with options to
extend for an additional 10 years.
The Company leases approximately 6,000 square feet of office space for its
headquarters in Bellevue, Washington, which lease expires on April 30, 2000.
The Company subleases approximately 2,000 additional square feet at its
headquarters in Bellevue on a month-to-month basis. The Company leases
approximately 40,000 square feet for its distribution facility in Union City,
California, which lease expires on December 31, 1999. The Company also leases
approximately 430 square feet of office space in Auckland, New Zealand. Such
lease term will expire on July 1, 1999, but can be renewed thereafter on a
month-to-month basis. The Company believes that its corporate offices and
distribution facilities will be sufficient to meet the Company's needs through
the end of fiscal 1999. The Company expects it will be able to renew the
Bellevue, Washington and Union City, California leases annually; however, the
Company believes it will be able to find suitable replacement facilities if
either facility lease is not extended.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings
The Company may be subject to legal proceedings or claims, either asserted
or unasserted, that arise in the ordinary course of business. While the
outcome of these claims cannot be predicted with certainty, management does
not believe that any pending legal matters will have a material adverse effect
on the Company.
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
No matters were submitted to a vote of the Company's shareholders during the
fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended December 27, 1998.
PART II
Item 5. Market for Company's Common Stock and Related Shareholder Matters
The Company's Common Stock is traded on the Nasdaq National Market (symbol
"CULS"). The number of shareholders of record of the Company's Common Stock at
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10
30
10
10
10

years
years
years
years
years

March 20, 1999, was 3,539,961.
High and low sales prices for the Company's Common Stock for the periods
indicated since July 23, 1998, the date the Common Stock began trading, are as
follows. Such prices reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up,
mark-down or commission and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Stock Price
----------High
Low
----- ----<C>
<C>

Year
----

<S>
Fiscal 1998 (ended December 27, 1998)
Third Quarter (from July 23, 1998)............................. 7.125 3.750
Fourth Quarter................................................. 7.250 3.875
</TABLE>
The Company has never declared or paid any cash dividends on its Common
Stock. The Company currently anticipates that it will retain all future
earnings for use in the expansion and operations of its business and does not
anticipate paying cash dividends in the foreseeable future.
On July 23, 1998, the Commission declared effective the Company's
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-52459) as filed with
the Commission in connection with the Company's Initial Public Offering. The
date of commencement of the Initial Public Offering was July 23, 1998. Of the
$7,797,000 in net proceeds received by the Company upon consummation of the
Offering, approximately $4 million was used to pay off the outstanding balance
under the Company's line of credit with Seafirst Bank. The remaining net
proceeds were invested in a money market account with Bank of America.
Concurrent with the Initial Public Offering, the Company sold 160,000 shares
of Common Stock at $7.00 per share, in the Concurrent Reg. S Placement to Kula
Fund, in reliance on the exclusion from registration provided by Regulation S
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. As part of the Concurrent
Reg. S Placement, the Company also sold to Kula Fund, for nominal
consideration, a warrant to purchase 117,000 shares of Common Stock at an
exercise price equal to $8.40 per share (120% of the per share price in the
Initial Public Offering), which warrant contains standard net issuance
provisions and is exercisable at any time until July 23, 2002. The net
proceeds of approximately $908,000 from the Concurrent Reg. S Placement were
invested in a money market account with Bank of America.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data
The following selected financial data should be read in conjunction with the
consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto and the information
contained herein in "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations." The Company's fiscal year ends on the
last Sunday in December. All years represent 52-week fiscal years except
fiscal 1995 was a 53-week fiscal year.
Selected Consolidated Financial and Operating Data
(in thousands, except per share data, average sales per square foot,
number of stores and percentage data)
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<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

<S>
Income Statement Data:
Net sales...............
Gross profit............
Operating Expenses:
Store..................
General and
administrative........
Store opening..........
Store closing..........
Operating income........
Interest expense, net...
Other income (expense)..
Income before income
taxes..................
Income tax provision
(benefit)..............
Net income..............
Earnings per common
share:
Basic..................
Diluted................
Weighted average common
shares outstanding,
assuming dilution......
Selected Operating Data:
Island stores:
Net sales..............
Store contribution
(2)...................
Stores opened..........
Stores closed..........
Stores open at end of
period................
Average net sales per
square foot (1)(3)....
Comparable-store net
sales increase
(decrease) (1)(3).....
Mainland stores:
Net sales..............
Store contribution
(2)...................
Stores opened..........
Stores closed..........
Stores open at end of
period................
Average net sales per
square foot (1).......
Comparable-store net
sales increase
(decrease) (1)(3).....

Fiscal Year Ended
--------------------------------------------------Dec. 25, Dec. 31,
Dec. 29,
Dec. 28,
Dec. 27,
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
-------- ----------------------------<C>
<C>
<C>
<C>
<C>
$117,204
16,351

$139,652
19,477

$134,820
20,996

$124,865
20,468

$133,861
22,324

10,512

14,949

15,843

14,543

15,100

2,210
643
840
2,146
(160)
176

2,728
600
400
800
(555)
150

2,162

3,039
0
918
1,196
(605)
0

395

3,225
327
1,346
1,027
(427)
(40)

591

4,139
747
238
2,100
(257)
(10)

560

1,833

$

982
1,180

$

145
250

$

221
370

$

197
363

$

640
1,193

$
$

0.59
0.53

$
$

0.13
0.11

$
$

0.19
0.17

$
$

0.18
0.17

$
$

0.45
0.43

2,210

2,198

2,147

2,124

2,759

$ 97,809

$120,010

$111,413

$111,480

$125,433

$

$

$

$

$

6,547
1
0
6

$

699

7
$

0.1%
$ 19,394
$

$ 19,642

(707) $
3
2

223
17.6%

547

(430)
2
0

$

244
8.9%

535

5,635
0
0
7

$

(5.0)%

536

$

(0.2)%
$

$

$

$

3
$

217

(160)
0
2
1

$

(4.2)%
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244
(3.2)%

596
10.9%

$ 10,684

(415)
0
1

6,690
3
1
9

$ 23,407

4
$

5,212
0
0
7

(18.5)%

2
$

4,958
2
1

6,782
(94)
0
0
1

$

293
(6.4)%

Total stores open at end
of period..............
8
11
10
8
10
Total comparable-store
net sales increase
(decrease) (1)(3)......
0.9%
(15.8)%
(4.9)%
(0.5)%
9.9%
Consolidated Balance
Sheet Data:
Working capital........ $ 4,710 $ 3,429
$ 3,635
$ 3,814
$ 9,241
Total assets........... $ 21,907 $ 28,525
24,856
22,815
37,217
Line of credit.........
622
3,500
1,500
376
0
Long-term debt, less
current maturities....
798
2,237
1,965
1,169
2,036
Total shareholders'
equity................
8,704
8,957
9,327
9,670
19,596
</TABLE>
-------(1) Fiscal 1995 was a 53-week year; all other fiscal years were 52-week years.
Comparable store net sales and average sales per square foot for fiscal
1995 have been adjusted to reflect a 52-week year. The Company's fiscal
quarters are 13 weeks.
(2) Store contribution is determined by deducting store expenses from store
gross profit.
(3) A new store becomes comparable after it has been open for a full 13
months.
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations
This discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with "Selected
Consolidated Financial Data" and the Company's Consolidated Financial
Statements, including the Notes thereto, included elsewhere in this Report. In
addition to historical information, the following "Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" contains certain
forward-looking statements that involve known and unknown risks and
uncertainties. The Company's actual results could differ significantly from
those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of certain
factors, including those discussed in "Important Factors Regarding ForwardLooking Statements" and elsewhere in this Report.
Overview
Background
Cost-U-Less began operations in 1989 by opening a mid-sized warehouse clubstyle store in Maui, Hawaii. In early 1992, the Company expanded its
operations by opening additional island stores in other relatively remote
island locations. After experiencing success with its mid-sized store concept,
the Company began experimenting in late 1992 with similar stores in various
mainland markets. Over the course of a three-year period, the Company opened
six mainland stores and seven island stores, but, over time, found that most
of the mainland stores were not profitable and did not meet the Company's
performance expectations. The Company believes that the unanticipated
concurrent expansion of large discount retailers in the Company's mainland
target markets, together with the substantially stronger buying power, broader
name recognition, better ability to afford prime locations for new facilities
(compared to the Company's use of older, abandoned buildings in less popular
locations) and overall greater resources of these competitors, combined to
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prevent the success of the Company's mainland stores.
The Company's store concept, however, continued to prove successful in the
more remote, and in many ways more challenging, island markets. The Company
therefore refocused on its core competencies in operating island stores and
began closing its mainland stores. The combined operating losses attributable
to mainland stores, including opening and closing expenses (but excluding any
allocation for related general and administrative or interest expenses) in
fiscal 1993 through 1997 totaled $5.8 million. Currently only one mainland
store remains open and serves as an efficient testing ground for new operating
and merchandising methods. The Company intends to retain this store while
targeting its future growth on island markets. To date, the Company's island
stores have been located in the Hawaiian Islands, U.S. Territories and
recently, two stores were opened in Fiji in the third and fourth quarter of
1998 and a store in Curacao, Netherlands Antilles on March 2, 1999.
Historically, the Company's island stores have been profitable within the
first year of operation. The Company's expansion strategy focuses primarily on
foreign island markets.
Store Economics
The Company benefits from attractive store-level economics and favorable
returns on investment at its island stores, which the Company believes will
help drive and support its planned expansion. The Company's seven island
stores open during all of fiscal 1998 generated average per store net sales of
$17.6 million, average net sales per square foot of $596, average annual per
store contribution of approximately $993,000 and average annual per store
contribution before depreciation of approximately $1.1 million. The Company
determines store contribution by deducting store expenses from gross profit.
The Company uses the entire interior space of its store, including receiving
and office space, in calculating average net sales per square foot. In August
1995, the Company began a program aimed at increasing its gross margin. The
Company (i) added higher margin items, such as fresh meat and perishables, to
its product mix, (ii) negotiated lower freight rates, (iii) improved and
increased item selection in its stores, including offering sizes that generate
higher margins than traditional warehouse pack sizes, and (iv) emphasized
local ethnic items in addition to popular U.S. brand names. As a result of
this program, the Company increased its gross margin from 14.0% in fiscal 1995
to 16.7% in fiscal 1998.
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Since June 1995, the Company has also upgraded its inventory control systems
by (i) adding bar code scanning at all store cash registers, receiving docks
and distribution facilities, (ii) installing security cameras in some of its
stores, and (iii) implementing an employee incentive program designed to
reward, among other things, reductions in inventory shrink rates. Implementing
these systems has reduced the Company's inventory shrink expense from 0.6% of
net sales in fiscal 1995 to 0.33% in fiscal 1998.
Distribution Facilities
The Company receives, consolidates and loads merchandise at its distribution
facilities, then ships merchandise to its island stores in fully loaded
containers. The Company does not own or operate a warehouse facility and
manages its in-store inventory primarily by electronically monitoring sellthrough of merchandise and maintaining efficient distribution facilities. The
Company's method of inventory management has enabled the Company to achieve
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inventory turns of 7.7 for fiscal 1998 and 1997, which represents an
improvement over the 7.2 inventory turns for fiscal 1996. In-store inventory
turns (excluding product in transit to stores and in the distribution
facilities) were 9.5 for fiscal 1998 and 1997, compared to 8.5 for fiscal
1996.
Store Openings
The Company expenses store opening costs as incurred. Store opening expenses
include payroll, travel and other costs incurred by the Company in connection
with site selection, licensing, permitting, lease negotiations and
construction supervision, as well as training for new store managers. The
Company anticipates that in fiscal 1999 and 2000 its required investment to
open a new store will be approximately $1.8 million, including approximately
$250,000 for opening expenses, $800,000 for store fixtures and equipment and
$750,000 for inventory. The Company expects to carry approximately $1.5
million of inventory, including $300,000 of inventory in transit. Typically,
50% of the Company's inventory is vendor-financed, resulting in the $750,000
average per-store inventory investment by the Company.
Store Closings
The Company's store closing expenses consist primarily of costs related to
(i) buying out the unexpired portion of the store lease and writing off the
net book value of leasehold improvements and (ii) repairing facilities prior
to their return to the lessor. The Company expenses these items in the period
when the decision is made to close the store.
Wholesale Activities
Beginning in 1997, the Company has sold merchandise from its distribution
facilities at wholesale prices to retailers that, the Company believes, resell
the merchandise in markets not currently served by the Company. In fiscal 1997
and 1998, gross margin on the Company's wholesale sales averaged 10.9%.
Because there are lower handling expenses associated with the Company's
wholesale operations, the Company believes that these operations provide it
with a profit opportunity that does not detract from its primary business of
retail sales. These wholesale activities declined to $1.6 million in 1998 from
$2.7 in 1997. To reverse this trend, the Company added a new department
manager in February 1999 to develop new business by targeting both new and
existing relationships.
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Results of Operations
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the percentage of
the Company's net sales represented by certain consolidated income statement
data.
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Fiscal Year Ended
-------------------------------------December 29, December 28, December 27,
1996
1997
1998
------------ ------------ -----------<S>
<C>
<C>
<C>
Net sales.............................
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
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Gross profit..........................
Operating Expenses:
Store...............................
General and administrative..........
Store opening.......................
Store closing.......................
Operating income......................
Interest expense......................
Income before income taxes............
Income tax provision..................
Net income............................
</TABLE>

15.6

16.4

16.7

11.7
2.3
-0.7
0.9
(0.5)
0.4
0.1
0.3%

11.6
2.6
0.3
1.1
0.8
(0.3)
0.5
0.2
0.3%

11.3
3.1
0.5
0.2
1.6
(0.2)
1.4
0.5
0.9%

Fiscal 1998 Compared to Fiscal 1997
Net Sales. Net sales in fiscal 1998 increased $9.0 million, or 7.2%, to
$133.9 million from $124.9 million in the prior year. The increase was
primarily due to same store sales increase of 9.9%, which was offset by the
loss of sales from two closed stores in 1997 that exceeded the sales gain from
two new stores in 1998, and further offset by a decrease in wholesale sales
from $2.7 million in 1997 to $1.6 million in 1998.
Gross Profit. Gross profit increased to $22.3 million from $20.5 million,
which resulted from the same store sales gains and an increase in gross
margin. Gross margin increased to 16.7% in fiscal 1998 from 16.4% in fiscal
1997. The increase in gross margin was due to the closure of two low-margin
mainland stores in 1997, increased sales in higher-margin departments such as
the fresh meat and perishable departments, and decreased distribution costs
resulting from a higher volumes.
Store Expenses. Store expenses increased $557,000, or 3.8%, to $15.1 million
from $14.5 million, and decreased as a percentage of net sales to 11.3% from
11.6%. The increase in dollars and reduction in percentage of net sales was
primarily due to the sales increases at existing stores.
General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses
increased $914,000, or 28.3%, to $4.1 million from $3.2 million, and increased
as a percentage of net sales to 3.1% from 2.6%. The increase was primarily due
to an increase in the number and salaries of corporate employees resulting
from the increased complexities from foreign operations and in costs directly
associated with being a public company, including, but not limited, to
accounting and audit fees, attorney fees, travel costs, director and officer
liability premiums and administrative costs associated with investor relations
activities.
Store Closing Expenses. Store closing expenses decreased to $238,000 from
$1.3 million. One store was closed in June 1998 in connection with the
completion of a new store in St. Thomas. The Company closed two domestic
stores in 1997. The closed store in 1998 was the Company's only island store
not built to company specifications and was damaged in a hurricane in
September 1995. As a result of the landlord's failure to properly repair the
facility, the Company reached an agreement with the landlord for an early
termination of the lease.
Interest Expense. Interest expense declined $170,000 to $257,000 in fiscal
1998 due primarily to an increase in interest income of $96,000 from interest
bearing deposits on the net Initial Public Offering proceeds received in late
July 1998 and a reduction in average outstanding borrowings.
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Other Expenses. Other expenses were comprised of insurance deductibles for
property and business interruption claims, including those related to the
effects of Hurricane Georges in USVI in September 1998 and Typhoon Paka in
Guam in December 1997.
Fiscal 1997 Compared to Fiscal 1996
Net Sales. Net sales in fiscal 1997 declined $9.9 million, or 7.4%, to
$124.9 million from $134.8 million in the prior year. The decrease was
primarily due to store closures, which reduced sales by $12.3 million, and a
decline in comparable store sales of $577,000. This decrease in comparable
store sales was largely attributable to the Company's Hawaii stores, for which
sales decreased $1.7 million in fiscal 1997 compared to fiscal 1996. The
Company believes that the decrease in sales for its Hawaii stores was
primarily due to a long-term statewide recession and a significant increase in
the level of competition in the Hawaii market. The decrease in net sales was
partially offset by $2.7 million in wholesale sales and by a comparable store
sales increase in the Company's other island stores of $1.5 million, or 1.7%.
Gross Profit. Gross profit decreased to $20.5 million from $21.0 million,
which resulted from a comparable store gross profit increase of $966,000 in
fiscal 1997, offset by a $1.7 million decline in gross profit attributable to
store closures in fiscal 1997. Gross margin increased to 16.4% in fiscal 1997
from 15.6% in fiscal 1996. The increase in gross margin was due to the closure
of three low-margin mainland stores, increased sales in higher-margin
departments such as the fresh meat and perishable departments, and decreased
distribution costs in its island stores.
Store Expenses. Store expenses decreased $1.3 million, or 8.2%, to $14.5
million from $15.8 million, and decreased as a percentage of net sales to
11.6% from 11.7%. The decrease was primarily due to a reduction in store
expenses from closed stores of $2.0 million. This reduction was offset by an
increase in store expenses for existing stores of $673,000, primarily from
wage rate increases associated with pay raises provided by the Company to its
hourly employees during the first three years of employment, the increased
rate at which the Company accrues vacation pay, increased rent associated with
consumer price index increases and utility usage relating to added
refrigeration capabilities.
General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses
increased $186,000, or 6.1%, to $3.2 million from $3.0 million, and increased
as a percentage of net sales to 2.6% from 2.3%. The increase was primarily due
to an increase in the number of corporate employees hired to support the
Company's planned expansion and increased accounting and tax preparation fees
related to incorporation of U.S. Territory stores as wholly owned
subsidiaries.
Store Opening Expenses. The Company incurred store opening expenses of
$327,000 in fiscal 1997. The Company did not incur any store opening expenses
in fiscal 1996. Fiscal 1997 store opening expenses were primarily due to
payroll and travel costs associated with site selection, licensing, permitting
and lease negotiations for new stores.
Store Closing Expenses. Store closing expenses increased to $1.3 million
from $918,000 due to closing two stores in fiscal 1997 compared to closing one
store in fiscal 1996. Accrued store closing expenses of $15,000 at December
28, 1997 were paid predominantly in the first quarter of fiscal 1998. Accrued
store closing expenses of $320,000 at December 29, 1996 were paid
predominantly in the first quarter of fiscal 1997.
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Interest Expense. Interest expense declined $178,000 in fiscal 1997 due to a
decrease in average outstanding borrowings to $3.7 million in fiscal 1997 from
$6.0 million in fiscal 1996.
Other Expenses. Other expenses were comprised of insurance deductibles for
property and business interruption claims, including those related to the
effects of Typhoon Paka in Guam in December 1997.
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Fiscal 1996 Compared to Fiscal 1995
Net Sales. Net sales in fiscal 1996 declined $4.9 million, or 3.5%, to
$134.8 million from $139.7 million. The decrease was due to a number of
factors. Fiscal 1996 was a 52-week year while fiscal 1995 was a 53-week year,
with an additional $2.3 million in sales attributable to the extra week. In
fiscal 1996, the Company closed one store, which further reduced net sales by
$7.0 million, though this reduction was offset by sales increases of $9.0
million in fiscal 1996 in the four stores that the Company opened in fiscal
1995. The Company opened no new stores in fiscal 1996. Comparable store sales
decreased 4.9% in fiscal 1996, primarily due to opening an additional Guam
store in a neighboring town during March 1995. Excluding the original Guam
store, comparable store island sales increased 1.1%, or $856,000.
Gross Profit. The Company's gross profit increased to $21.0 million from
$19.5 million. Gross margin increased to 15.6% from 14.0%. The increase in
gross profit resulted from a comparable store gross profit increase of
$822,000 and a $1.5 million increase from four stores opened in fiscal 1995,
offset by a $758,000 loss of gross profit from a store closure at the end of
fiscal 1995. The increase in gross margin was primarily due to sales in
higher-margin produce and meat departments, increased selection of other
higher-margin items, decreased freight and distribution costs and increased
prices on non-price-sensitive items.
Store Expenses. Store expenses increased $894,000, or 6.0%, to $15.8 million
from $14.9 million and increased as a percentage of net sales to 11.7% from
10.7%. The increase was attributable to a $1.8 million increase from stores
opened during fiscal 1995 and a $469,000 increase in store expenses related to
increased depreciation, utilities and maintenance expenses associated with new
refrigeration equipment, the increased rate at which the Company accrues
vacation pay, and professional fees associated with store lease negotiations
and incorporation of the island stores, offset by a $1.2 million reduction of
store expenses for stores closed in fiscal 1996. The increase in store
expenses as a percentage of net sales was primarily due to the effect of
opening a second store in Guam during fiscal 1995, which increased total store
expenses for the two Guam stores by $401,000 in fiscal 1996 compared to fiscal
1995.
General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses
increased $311,000, or 11.4%, to $3.0 million from $2.7 million and increased
as a percentage of net sales to 2.3% from 2.0%. The increase was primarily due
to additional personnel and costs related to four new stores opened in fiscal
1995.
Store Opening Expenses. In fiscal 1995 the Company incurred store opening
expenses of $600,000 for four new stores: one in Guam, one in American Samoa
and two in California. The Company did not incur any store opening expenses in
fiscal 1996.
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Store Closing Expenses. Store closing expenses increased to $918,000 from
$400,000. The Company closed one mainland store in December 1996, which
necessitated buying out a long-term lease, and closed the Maui, Hawaii store
in December 1995. The Maui store was near the end of its lease term, and the
Company did not renew the lease because of the continued recession in Hawaii
and the opening of two new large-format discount retail stores in the same
town. Accrued store closing expenses of $392,000 at December 31, 1995 were
paid predominantly in the first quarter of fiscal 1996.
Interest Expense. Interest expense increased $50,000 due to an increase in
average outstanding borrowings to $6.0 million in fiscal 1996 from $4.4
million in fiscal 1995.
Other Income. Other income in fiscal 1995 of $150,000 was comprised of an
insurance recovery for business interruption claims related to the effects of
Hurricane Marilyn in St. Thomas in September 1995.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
The Company has historically financed its operations with internally
generated funds; the Company's credit facilities and private equity
transactions. In July 1998, the Company raised $8.7 million in net proceeds
from its Initial Public Offering and concurrent private placement. See "Market
for Company's Common Stock and Related Shareholder Matters."
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Net cash provided by
for fiscal years 1996,
provided by operations
for the two new stores
closed four stores and

operations was $2.3 million, $4.6 million and $245,000
1997 and 1998, respectively. The decrease in net cash
in 1998 was primarily due to an increase in inventory
in Fiji compared to 1996 and 1997, when the Company
reduced inventories in both years.

Net cash used in investing activities was $2.0 million, $899,000 and $7.2
million for fiscal year 1996, 1997 and 1998, respectively. The increase in
cash used in 1998 was due to of the construction of a new store in St. Thomas
and equipment for new stores. In addition, the Company improved its corporate
computer systems and acquired most of the equipment for the new store in
Curacao that opened March 2, 1999. In 1996 and 1997, the Company did not open
any new stores. Investment activity in 1996 and 1997 was primarily for various
store equipment upgrades.
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities was $(1.8) million,
$(2.7) million and $10.2 million for fiscal year 1996, 1997 and 1998,
respectively. The increase in cash from financing activities was a result of
the sale of 1,540,000 shares through the Company's Initial Public Offering and
Concurrent Reg. S Placement that provided net proceeds of $8.7 million in July
1998, and long term loans totaling $3.0 million in connection with the
construction of the new St. Thomas store. The cash used by financing
activities in 1996 and 1997 reflects a reduction in the outstanding balance of
the Company's bank credit facilities.
On May 1, 1998, the Company renewed and increased its line of credit with
Seafirst Bank to $7.0 million, which expires May 1, 1999. The credit line
matures annually and the Company is currently in the process of renewing the
credit line for another year, which it expects to complete before May 1, 1999.
Borrowings under the credit facilities bear interest at Seafirst's prime rate
(8.5% at December 27, 1998) or at LIBOR plus 1.5%. The collateral for the line
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of credit consists of inventories, equipment and trade accounts receivable.
The line of credit contains certain covenants, including requiring the Company
to maintain minimum tangible net worth and minimum ratios of current assets to
current liabilities, debt to tangible net worth and quarterly cash flow and
must obtain the consent of the lender to (i) pay dividends, (ii) purchase or
sell assets or incur indebtedness, other than in the ordinary course of
business, (iii) make loans to, or investments in, any other person, (iv) enter
into a merger or other business combination, or (v) make capital expenditures
in excess of a specified limit. The Company is in compliance with such
covenants. There were no borrowings under the line of credit as of December
27, 1998. The Company does expect to utilize the credit facilities later in
the year as a result of new store openings. In addition, the Company is also
negotiating for a $2.0 million credit facility for the construction of its
store in St. Maarten.
The new St. Thomas store has been constructed at a total cost of $2.9
million plus $600,000 for equipment and fixtures. The Company obtained $3.0
million in financing from Seafirst Bank and Banco Popular de Puerto Rico
("Banco Popular") for its new store in St. Thomas. The financing included a
$1.0 million note with Seafirst Bank, payable with interest at 7.77%, maturing
on April 30, 2000 and is secured by the same collateral securing the line of
credit. As of December 27, 1998, the Company owned $725,000 on the loan. The
financing also included a $2.0 million note with Banco Popular payable with
interest at the bank's prime rate plus 1.0% (9.5% at December 27, 1998)
maturing on June 1, 2013. The note is secured by a first priority leasehold
mortgage on the St. Thomas store and is governed by a loan agreement
containing certain covenants applicable to the Company's subsidiary that owns
such store, including covenants requiring the subsidiary to maintain a minimum
debt service ration and loan to value ratio. In addition, without the consent
of the lender, the subsidiary is not permitted to (i) subject its assets to
liens or incur indebtedness, (ii) enter into a merger or other business
combination, (iii) dispose of assets except in the ordinary course of
business, (iv) make capital expenditures or pay dividends in excess of
specified limits, or (v) issue or purchase any of its stock or permit any
change in ownership or outstanding stock. The subsidiary is currently in
compliance with such covenants.
The Company estimates that its total cash outlay for opening a typical
island store will be approximately $1.8 million. The Company plans to open
three stores in 1999 in addition to the Curacao store that opened on March 2,
1999, and six stores in 2000. When opening a new store, as well as on an ongoing basis, the Company
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expects to finance a substantial portion of its merchandise inventory cost by
using a combination of vendor and bank financing. However, there can be no
assurance that this level of financing will be available in the future on
terms acceptable to the Company.
The Company believes that the amounts available on its current credit
facility, existing cash available for working capital purposes, new credit
facilities for the construction of the St. Maarten store, and cash flow from
future operations will be sufficient to open the stores planned in its
expansion in 1999 and 2000. Additional increases in the Company's existing
line of credit and additional long term debt for both new store construction
and equipment will be obtainable as needed. However, there are no assurances
that such financing will be available when the Company needs it.
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Year 2000 Compliance
The Year 2000 issue is the result of computer programs being written using
two digits, rather than four, to define the applicable year. Any of the
Company's computer programs that have time-sensitive software may recognize a
date using "00" as the year 1900 rather than the Year 2000. If not addressed,
the direct result of the Year 2000 issue could be a system failure or
miscalculations, causing disruption of operations, including a temporary
inability to process customer transactions, order merchandise, accurately
track inventory and revenue, or engage in similar normal business activities.
The Company believes that all of its material systems are Year 2000compliant, and expects that its total costs to make all its systems Year 2000compliant will be less than $100,000. The Company has contacted all of it
inventory suppliers plus other vendors and suppliers with which its systems
interface and exchange data or upon which it business depends, such as banks,
security alarm monitoring providers, refrigeration equipment suppliers and
maintenance providers and other service suppliers. These efforts are designed
to minimize the extent to which the Company's business will be vulnerable in
the event of the failure of these third parties to remedy their own Year 2000
issues.
Although most of the Company's hardware and software are Year 2000
compliant, some programming changes are not scheduled to be completed on
certain custom programs until July 1, 1999. In addition, the back room
software at the Company's stores runs on stand alone PC's running in a DOS
environment that requires modifications to be Year 2000 compliant. Upon
completion of an upgrade to the corporate system software, scheduled to be
completed by July 1, 1999, this backroom system will be obsolete. Contingency
plans are in place to modify the existing backroom software and hardware
should the upgrade not be completed before Year 2000.
Management believes that sourcing product from alternative vendors that are
Year 2000 compliant will minimize any potential interruption in product, if
one or more vendors are not able to deliver product in accordance with terms
of any purchase order. The availability of power is considered a significant
concern by management. Although most of the local power companies servicing
the islands that the Company operates has acknowledged Year 2000 compliance,
the Company's back-up generators can provide a secondary source of power. The
Company has experienced disruption in power for extended periods of time on
numerous occasions as a result of hurricanes and believes that the backup
generators will allow the stores to continue to operate should any power
outages occur as a result of Year 2000 problems.
The Company's contingency plans are currently under development and expected
to be completed by October 1, 1999. Such plans will include, but not be
limited to: 1) power disruption, 2) vendor replacement, 3) communication
alternatives, 4) manual processes for temporary delays resulting from
programming changes to correct unforeseen Year 2000 problems.
Costs of the Year 2000 project and the estimated completion date are based
on management's best estimates, which are derived utilizing numerous
assumptions. However, there can be no guarantee that these estimates will be
achieved and actual results could differ materially from the estimates.
Specific factors that might cause
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material differences include, but are not limited to, the availability and
Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

cost of outside programmers and computer consultants, reliance on utilities in
foreign countries that may or may not be Year 2000 compliant and similar
uncertainties.
The Company's failure to implement its Year 2000 corrections in a timely
fashion or in accordance with its current cost estimates, or the failure of
third-party vendors to correct their Year 2000 problems, could have a material
adverse effect on the Company's business, financial condition and operating
results. See Business--Important Factors Regarding Forward-Looking
Statements."
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
The Company does operate stores in foreign countries and does have limited
risks associated with foreign currencies. However, sales are primarily made in
cash with minimal trade credit extended and no borrowings exist in foreign
currencies. Cash deposited from sales are remitted back to the U.S. bank
account, routinely. Because of the lack of trade credit and borrowing in
foreign countries and that the Company's exposure is not concentrated in any
single currency, management does not believe that it experiences any
significant market risk from foreign currencies.
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
The following consolidated financial statements and supplementary data are
included beginning on page 35 of this Report:
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Page
---<S>
<C>
Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Auditors....................... 28
Consolidated Financial Statements:
Consolidated Balance Sheets........................................... 29
Consolidated Statements of Income..................................... 30
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity....................... 31
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows................................. 32
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements............................ 33
</TABLE>
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REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
Board of Directors
Cost-U-Less, Inc.
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Cost-U-Less,
Inc. as of December 27, 1998 and December 28, 1997 and the related
consolidated statements of income, shareholders' equity, and cash flows for
each of the years ended December 27, 1998, December 28, 1997, and December 29,
1996. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the
Index at Item 14(a). These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
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obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position
of Cost-U-Less, Inc. at December 27, 1998 and December 28, 1997 and the
consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the
years ended December 27, 1998, December 28, 1997, and December 29, 1996, in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our
opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation
to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all
material respects, the information set forth therein.
ERNST & YOUNG LLP
Seattle, Washington
March 5, 1999
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COST-U-LESS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
December 27, December 28,
1998
1997
------------ -----------<C>
<C>

<S>
ASSETS
-----Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents..........................
Receivables (net of allowance of $143 and $25 in
1998 and 1997, respectively)......................
Refundable income taxes............................
Inventories........................................
Prepaid expenses...................................
Deferred tax assets................................
Total current assets.............................
Property and equipment, net..........................
Deposits and other assets............................
Deferred tax assets..................................
Total assets.....................................
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
-----------------------------------Current liabilities:
Accounts payable...................................
Accrued expenses...................................

$ 4,289

$ 1,028

1,696
157
16,685
210
511
------23,548
12,712
816
141
------$37,217
=======

1,023
179
12,271
137
671
------15,309
6,847
518
141
------$22,815
=======

$11,420
1,809

$ 8,953
1,235
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Income taxes payable...............................
Line of credit.....................................
Current portion of long-term debt..................
Current portion of capital lease obligations.......
Total current liabilities........................
Deferred rent........................................
Long-term debt, less current portion.................
Capital lease obligations, less current portion......
Total liabilities................................
Commitments
Shareholders' equity:
Preferred stock--$0.001 par value; Authorized
shares--2,000,000; Issued and outstanding shares,
respectively--none..................................
Common stock--$0.001 par value; Authorized shares-25,000,000; Issued and outstanding shares,
respectively--3,539,961 and 1,999,961...............
Retained earnings....................................
Accumulated other comprehensive income...............
Total shareholders' equity.......................
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity.......

23
-633
422
------14,307
524
2,036
754
------17,621

-12,305
7,358
(67)
------19,596
------$37,217
=======

141
376
384
406
------11,495
481
-1,169
------13,145

-3,525
6,165
(20)
------9,670
------$22,815
=======

</TABLE>
See accompanying notes.
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COST-U-LESS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in thousands, except share and per share data)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Fiscal Year Ended
-------------------------------------December 27, December 28, December 29,
1998
1997
1996
------------ ------------ -----------<S>
<C>
<C>
<C>
Net sales.............................. $ 133,861
$ 124,865
$ 134,820
Merchandise costs......................
111,537
104,397
113,824
------------------------Gross profit...........................
22,324
20,468
20,996
Operating expenses:
Store................................
15,100
14,543
15,843
General and administrative...........
4,139
3,225
3,039
Store openings.......................
747
327
-Store closings.......................
238
1,346
918
------------------------Total operating expenses...............
20,224
19,441
19,800
------------------------Operating income.......................
2,100
1,027
1,196
Other income (expense):
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Interest expense, net................
Other................................
Income before income taxes.............
Income tax provision...................
Net income.............................
Earnings per common share:
Basic................................
Diluted..............................
Weighted average common shares
outstanding...........................
Weighted average common shares
outstanding, assuming dilution........

(257)
(10)
--------1,833
640
--------$
1,193
=========

(427)
(40)
--------560
197
--------$
363
=========

(605)
---------591
221
--------$
370
=========

$
0.45
=========
$
0.43
=========

$
0.18
=========
$
0.17
=========

$
0.19
=========
$
0.17
=========

2,664,192
=========

1,999,961
=========

1,999,961
=========

2,758,939
=========

2,123,784
=========

2,146,745
=========

</TABLE>
See accompanying notes.
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COST-U-LESS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
(in thousands, except share data)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Common
Stock-Shares
--------<C>

Common
Stock-Amount
------<C>

<S>
Balance at December 31,
1995........................ 1,999,961 $ 3,525
Net income and
comprehensive income......
----------- ------Balance at December 29,
1996........................ 1,999,961
3,525
Net income.................
--Other comprehensive income
(loss), foreign currency
translation adjustments...
---

Accumulated
Other
Retained Comprehensive
Earnings Income (Loss) Total
-------- ------------- ------<C>
<C>
<C>
$5,432

$--

$ 8,957

370
------

-----

370
-------

5,802
363

---

--

(20)

Comprehensive income.......
--------- ------Balance at December 28,
1997........................ 1,999,961
3,525
Net income.................
--Other comprehensive income
(loss), foreign currency
translation adjustments...
---

-----6,165
1,193
--
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---(20)
-(47)

9,327
363
(20)
------343
------9,670
1,193
(47)

------1,146

Comprehensive income.......
Initial public offering:...
Sale of common stock, net
of $2,075 of offering
costs................... 1,540,000
8,705
Stock compensation...........
-75
--------- ------Balance at December 27,
1998........................ 3,539,961 $12,305
========= =======
</TABLE>

--------

------

8,705
75
-------

$7,358
======

$(67)
====

$19,596
=======

See accompanying notes.
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COST-U-LESS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

<S>
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income............................
Adjustments to reconcile net income to
net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation..........................
Writedown of property and equipment...
Deferred tax (benefit) provision......
Stock compensation....................
Reserve for bad debts.................
Cash provided by (used in) changes in
operating assets and liabilities:
Receivables.........................
Refundable income taxes.............
Inventories.........................
Prepaid expenses....................
Deposits and other assets...........
Accounts payable....................
Accrued expenses....................
Deferred rent.......................
Net cash provided by operating
activities.......................
INVESTING ACTIVITY:
Purchases of property and equipment...
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from sale of common stock....

Fiscal Year Ended
-------------------------------------December 27, December 28, December 29,
1998
1997
1996
------------ ------------ -----------<C>
<C>
<C>
$1,193

$

363

1,092
195
42
75
118
(791)
22
(4,414)
(73)
(180)
2,467
456
43
-----245

$

370

917
637
(253)
---

1,089
713
(20)
-25

(308)
208
2,667
179
(193)
352
(142)
151
------

605
128
1,660
(108)
31
(1,860)
(496)
129
------

4,578

2,266

(7,152)

(899)

(2,006)

8,705

--

--
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Net (repayments) under line of
credit...............................
Proceeds from long-term debt..........
Principal payments on long-term debt..
Payments of capital lease
obligations..........................
Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities.............
Effects of foreign exchange rate
changes on cash......................
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents............................
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of period...................
End of period.........................
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest............................
Income taxes........................
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH
FINANCING AND INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Property and equipment acquired under
capital lease obligations............
</TABLE>

(376)
3,000
(715)

(1,125)
-(1,246)

(2,000)
1,747
(1,151)

(399)
------

(375)
------

(406)
------

10,215

(2,746)

(1,810)

(47)
------

-------

-------

3,261

933

(1,550)

1,028
-----$4,289
======

95
-----$1,028
======

1,645
-----$
95
======

$
$

409
577

$
$

442
102

$
$

$

--

$

--

$1,660

619
107

See accompanying notes.
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COST-U-LESS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of Business
Cost-U-Less, Inc. (the "Company") operates mid-sized warehouse club-style
stores in "island" markets in U.S. territories and foreign markets throughout
the Pacific and the Caribbean. At December 27, 1998, the Company operated ten
stores located in Hawaii, the U.S. Virgin Islands (USVI), Guam, American
Samoa, Fiji, and California.
Principles of Consolidation
The Company operates wholly owned subsidiaries in Guam, U.S. Virgin Islands,
American Samoa, Nevada, Republic of Fiji, New Zealand, and Netherlands
Antilles. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.
Fiscal Year
The Company's fiscal year ends on the last Sunday in December. The years
ended December 27, 1998, December 28, 1997, and December 29, 1996 represent
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52-week fiscal years.
Cash Equivalents
Highly liquid investments maturing within three months from the date of
purchase are classified as cash equivalents.
Financial Instruments
The carrying value of financial instruments, including cash, receivables,
payables, and long-term debt, approximates market value at December 27, 1998
and December 28, 1997.
Foreign Currency Translations
The U.S. dollar is the functional currency for all locations, except for
Fiji, New Zealand, and Netherlands Antilles. For the Company's Fijian, New
Zealand, and Netherlands Antilles operations, the local currency is the
functional currency and all assets and liabilities are translated at year-end
exchange rates, and all income statement amounts are translated at an average
of month-end rates. Adjustments resulting from this translation are recorded
as a separate component of shareholders' equity as other comprehensive income.
Inventories
Merchandise inventories are recorded at the lower of average cost or market.
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are carried at cost. Depreciation is provided using
the straightline method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, ranging
from 5 to 15 years. The Company owns its store in St. Thomas, USVI, which is
being depreciated over its estimated useful life of 20 years. Equipment
acquired under capitalized leases is depreciated over the shorter of the
asset's estimated useful life or the life of the related lease.
The Company's policy to recognize impairment losses relating to long-lived
assets is based on several factors, including, but not limited to,
management's plans for future operations, recent operating results, and
projected cash flows.
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COST-U-LESS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(Continued)
Advertising Costs
The cost of advertising is expensed as incurred. Advertising expenses
incurred during fiscal years 1998, 1997, and 1996 were not material to the
Company's operating results.
Preopening Costs
Costs incurred in connection with the startup and promotion of new store
openings are expensed as incurred.
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Stock-Based Compensation
The Company has elected to apply the disclosure only provisions of Financial
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation. Accordingly, the Company accounts for stock-based compensation
using the intrinsic value method prescribed by Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related
interpretations under APB No. 25, whereby compensation cost for stock options
is measured as the excess, if any, of the fair value of the Company's common
stock at the date of grant over the stock option exercise price.
Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed based on weighted average shares
outstanding. Diluted earnings per share includes the effect of dilutive
securities (options and warrants) except where their inclusion is
antidilutive.
Deferred Rent
Certain of the Company's store leases contain periodic escalation clauses.
The Company expenses rent on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease.
During the initial years of a store lease, cash payments are typically less
than the straight-line expense. The differential is recorded as deferred rent
on the balance sheet.
Comprehensive Income
As of December 29, 1997, the Company adopted Statement No. 130, Reporting
Comprehensive Income. Statement No. 130 establishes new rules for the
reporting and display of comprehensive income and its components; however, the
adoption of this Statement had no impact on the Company's net income or
shareholders' equity. Statement No. 130 requires foreign currency translation
adjustments, which prior to adoption were reported separately in shareholders'
equity to be included in other comprehensive income.
Segment Reporting
Effective January 1, 1997, the Company adopted the Financial Accounting
Standards Board's Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131,
Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information. This
Statement establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises
report information about operating segments in annual financial statements and
requires that those enterprises report selected information about operating
segments in interim financial reports. Statement No. 131 also establishes
standards for related disclosures about products and services, geographic
areas, and major customers. The adoption of this Statement did not affect
results of operations or financial position.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In March 1998, the AICPA issued SOP 98-1, Accounting for the Costs of
Computer Software Developed for or Obtained for Internal Use. The Company
plans to adopt the SOP on January 1, 1999. The SOP will require
34
COST-U-LESS, INC.

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(Continued)
the capitalization of certain costs incurred after the date of adoption in
connection with developing or obtaining software for internal use. The Company
currently capitalizes the majority of the costs required to be capitalized
under SOP 98-1 and thus does not expect the adoption of the SOP to have a
material impact on consolidated results of operations, financial position, or
cash flows.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.
2. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consists of the following (in thousands):
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
December 27, December 28,
1998
1997
------------ -----------<S>
<C>
<C>
Equipment........................................
$11,898
$8,238
Building.........................................
2,874
-Leasehold improvements...........................
1,171
1,339
Computer system and software development in
progress........................................
592
-Construction in progress.........................
-94
-----------16,535
9,671
Less accumulated depreciation....................
3,823
2,824
-----------Total assets.....................................
$12,712
$6,847
=======
======
</TABLE>
Equipment under capitalized leases had a cost of $1,669,000 and $1,733,000
and accumulated depreciation of $476,000 and $331,000 at December 27, 1998 and
December 28, 1997, respectively.
3. Bank Line of Credit
At December 27, 1998, the Company had a $7,000,000 line of credit available
from a commercial bank that expires May 1, 1999. Borrowings bear interest at
prime (7.75% at December 27, 1998 or at LIBOR plus 1.5% on amounts with fixed
maturities of 30 days or more) and are secured by various Company assets. As
of December 27, 1998, there were no borrowings outstanding under the line of
credit agreement.
Terms of this line of credit include covenants that require, among other
things, that the Company maintain certain financial ratios. As of December 27,
1998, the Company was in compliance with these covenants.
4. Long-Term Debt
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At December 27, 1998, the Company had a $1,000,000 note payable to a bank
with interest at the fixed rate index plus 1.75% (7.77% at December 27, 1998),
maturing April 30, 2000. As of December 27, 1998, there was a balance of
$725,000 under the note agreement and is secured by various Company assets.
At December 27, 1998, the Company had a $2,000,000 note payable to a bank
with interest at the prime rate plus 1% (9.5% at December 27, 1998), maturing
June 2013. As of December 27, 1998, there was a balance of $1,944,000 under
the note agreement. The note is secured by a first leasehold priority mortgage
on the new St. Thomas building.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(Continued)
Maturities of long-term debt during the next five fiscal years and thereafter
are as follows (in thousands):
<TABLE>
<S>
<C>
1999......................... $ 633
2000.........................
358
2001.........................
133
2002.........................
133
Thereafter................... 1,412
-----$2,669
======
</TABLE>
5. Income Taxes
The provision for income taxes for the fiscal years ended December 27, 1998,
December 28, 1997, and December 29, 1996, respectively, consists of the
following:
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
1998
1997
1996
----- ----- ---(in thousands)
<C>
<C>
<C>

<S>
Current:
Federal.............................................. $ 112
Foreign, including U.S. territories..................
483
State................................................
3
----598
Deferred:
Federal and state....................................
273
Foreign, including U.S. territories.................. (231)
----42
----$ 640
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$

-- $ 10
463
199
(13)
32
----- ---450
241
(268) (76)
15
56
----- ---(253) (20)
----- ---$ 197 $221

=====

=====

====

</TABLE>
A reconciliation between the U.S statutory income tax rate and the effective
rate follows:
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
1998
1997
1996
----------- ----------- ----------Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
------ ---- ------ ---- ------ ---(dollars in thousands)
<S>
<C>
<C>
<C>
<C>
<C>
<C>
Tax at U.S. statutory rate............. $623 34.0% $190 34.0% $201 34.0%
State income taxes, net of federal
benefit...............................
3
.2
(9) (1.6)
21
3.6
Foreign related taxes and other........
14
.7
16
2.8
(1) (0.2)
---- ------- ------- ---Income taxes at effective rate......... $640 34.9% $197 35.2% $221 37.4%
==== ====
==== ====
==== ====
</TABLE>
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(Continued)
The significant items comprising the Company's net deferred tax assets are
as follows:
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

<S>
Current deferred tax assets and (liabilities):
Uniform capitalization..........................
Store accruals..................................
Vacation pay and bad debts......................
Charitable contribution carryovers..............
Net operating loss carryforwards................
Cash discounts and other........................
Current deferred tax assets, net..............
Long-term deferred tax assets and (liabilities):
Deferred rent...................................
Foreign tax credits.............................
AMT and other credits...........................
Other...........................................
Accelerated depreciation........................
Less valuation allowance........................

December 27, December 28,
1998
1997
------------ -----------(in thousands)
<C>
<C>
$ 157
101
35
283
(65)
----$ 511
=====

95
-52
45
600
(121)
----$ 671
=====

$ 178
321
96
121
(376)
----340
(199)

$ 163
434
85
8
(382)
----308
(167)

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

$

Long-term deferred tax assets, net............

----$ 141
=====

----$ 141
=====

</TABLE>
The Company intends to reinvest the unremitted earnings of its non-U.S.
subsidiaries and postpone their remittance indefinitely. Accordingly, no
provision for U.S. income taxes was required on such earnings. It is not
practicable to estimate the tax liabilities which would result upon such
repatriation.
The valuation allowance has been provided due to uncertainty regarding the
full realization of the Company's foreign tax credits and other long-term
deferred tax assets. Foreign tax credit carryforwards expire in 1999 and 2000.
As of December 28, 1998, the Company's Fiji subsidiary has a net operating
loss of approximately $625,000, which will expire in 2006 and 2007. Other net
operating losses in New Zealand and Netherlands Antilles of approximately
$208,000 are not subject to expiration time limits.
6. Shareholders' Equity
Common Stock
On May 13, 1998, the Company effected a 1-for-3.38773 reverse split of its
common stock. All share and per-share information has been restated to reflect
this stock split.
The Company sold 1,380,000 shares of common stock at $7.00 per share in an
Initial Public Offering on July 23, 1998. Concurrent with the Initial Public
Offering, the Company sold 160,000 shares of common stock, at $7.00 per share,
in a placement to the Kula Fund, an affiliate of Commonwealth Development
Corporation, in reliance on Regulation S under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended. In connection with these transactions, the Company issued warrants at
a nominal price to the Underwriter on the transactions and to the Kula Fund as
follows:
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Shares Grant Price
------- ----------<S>
<C>
<C>
Underwriter Warrants.... 160,000
$10.15
Kula Fund Warrants...... 117,000
$ 8.40
</TABLE>

Term
------------------------<C>
4 years from vesting date
4 years from vesting date

Vesting Date
------------<C>
July 23, 1999
July 28, 1998
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Stock Options
On February 28, 1998, the Company adopted the 1998 Stock Incentive
Compensation Plan (the "1998 Plan"). The 1998 Plan includes both stock options
and stock awards, including restricted stock, with a maximum of 500,000 shares
of common stock available for issuance. On May 13, 1998, the shareholders
approved the 1998 Plan. All future option grants will be made under the 1998
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Plan. Options issued under the 1998 Plan vest at various terms and expire
after ten years from the date of grant and are generally granted at prices
equal to the fair value on the date of grant. There were 224,214 options
available for future grant under the 1998 Plan at December 27, 1998.
The Company's Amended and Restated 1989 Stock Option Plan (the "1989 Plan")
provides for the granting of incentive and nonqualified stock options to
employees, directors, and consultants of the Company. An aggregate of 398,496
shares of common stock has been authorized for issuance under the 1989 Plan.
Options issued under the 1989 Plan vest ratably over five years and expire
after ten years from the date of grant and are generally granted at prices
equal to the fair value on the date of grant. There were 175,936 options
available for future grant under the 1989 Plan at December 27, 1998. No
further options will be granted under the 1989 Plan.
A summary of stock option transactions for the years ended December 27,
1998, December 28, 1997, and December 29, 1996:
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
1998
-----------------Weighted
Average
Exercise
Options
Price
-------- -------<C>
<C>

<S>
Outstanding, beginning
of year................ 291,009
Granted............... 442,546
Forfeited............. (281,405)
Exercised.............
--------Outstanding, end of
year................... 452,150
========
Exercisable, end of
year................... 210,094
========
</TABLE>

1997
----------------Weighted
Average
Exercise
Options
Price
------- -------<C>
<C>

1996
----------------Weighted
Average
Exercise
Options
Price
------- -------<C>
<C>

$5.49
6.96
9.08
--

270,320
45,744
(25,055)
--------

$4.98
9.82
9.45
--

270,320
47,497
(47,497)
--------

5.35

291,009
=======

5.49

270,320
=======

4.98

3.53

255,340
=======

5.03

206,257
=======

4.51

$ 6.20
8.47
13.42
--

The weighted average fair value of options granted in 1998, 1997, and 1996
was $5.18, $0.09, and $0.42, respectively.
The following table summarizes information related to outstanding options at
December 27, 1998:
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Outstanding
----------------------------------------------------Weighted
Weighted
Range of
Average
Average
Exercise
Exercise
Contractual
Prices
Options
Price
Life
------------------------------<S>
<C>
<C>
<C>
$0.79 - 3.38
84,125
$1.94
2.38 years
3.72 - 5.75
100,640
3.83
6.41 years
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Exercisable
---------------------Weighted
Average
Exercise
Options
Price
-------------<C>
<C>
84,125
$1.94
92,239
3.72

7.00

267,385
------452,150
=======

7.00

9.84 years

5.35

33,730
------210,094
=======

7.00
3.53

</TABLE>
In October 1998, the Company offered employees and directors with options
granted with exercise prices greater than $7.00 per share the opportunity to
surrender those options and receive new options with an exercise price of
$7.00 per share. With the exception of the exercise price, the terms of the
new options, including the
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vesting schedule, are identical to the terms of the old options except for
officers and directors who accepted a delay in vesting of six months. The
holders of 267,385 options elected to exchange their options under this
repricing offer, including directors of the Company holding 168,246 options.
All options surrendered were reissued under the 1998 Plan.
In January 1998, the Company granted 88,554 options with immediate vesting
to a director of the Company. The options were granted with an exercise price
of $7.62, with a deemed fair value of $8.47. Accordingly, for financial
statement presentation purposes, compensation expense of $75,000 has been
recognized.
In 1996, the Company offered employees with options granted with exercise
prices of $16.94 per share the opportunity to surrender those options and
receive new options with an exercise price of $8.47 per share. With the
exception of the exercise price, the terms of the new options, including the
vesting schedule, are identical to the terms of the old options. The holders
of 29,789 options elected to exchange their options under this repricing
offer.
As described in Note 1, the Company has elected to account for stock-based
compensation expense in accordance with APB No. 25. Accordingly, for fiscal
years 1998, 1997, and 1996, no compensation expense has been recognized for
stock-based compensation since the grant price equaled the estimated fair
value of the stock on the date of grant. Had compensation cost been recognized
based on the fair value at the grant date for options awarded under the Plan,
pro forma net income and net income per share would have been as follows:
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

<S>
Net income as reported...................................
Net income pro forma.....................................
Earnings per common share, basic as reported.............
Earnings per common share, basic pro forma...............
Earnings per common share, diluted as reported...........
Earnings per common share, diluted pro forma.............
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1998 1997 1996
------ ----- ----(Net income in
thousands)
<C>
<C>
<C>
$1,193 $ 363 $ 370
$1,068 $ 357 $ 367
$ 0.45 $0.18 $0.19
$ 0.40 $0.18 $0.18
$ 0.43 $0.17 $0.17
$ 0.39 $0.17 $0.17

</TABLE>
Compensation expense recognized in providing pro forma disclosures may not
be representative of the effects on pro forma net income for future years
because the above amounts include only the amortization for the fair value of
grants made in fiscal years 1998, 1997, and 1996.
The fair value of each option is estimated on the date of grant under the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model using the following assumptions:
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
<S>
Risk-free interest rate..............................
Expected life........................................
Expected dividend yield..............................
Volatility...........................................
</TABLE>

1998
1997
1996
------- ------- ------<C>
<C>
<C>
5.50%
6.20%
6.20%
3 years 3 years 3 years
0%
0%
0%
126%
0%
0%

Warrants
In 1991, the Company issued 29,518 warrants to an officer. The warrants
grant the holder the right to 29,518 shares of the Company's common stock at
$2.37 per share. The warrants are currently exercisable and expire in 2001.
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Common Stock Reserved
Common stock reserved for future issuance at December 27, 1998 is as
follows:
<TABLE>
<S>
<C>
Stock options......................................................
852,300
Warrants...........................................................
306,518
--------1,158,818
=========
</TABLE>
On February 23, 1999, the Company's Board of Directors declared a dividend
distribution of preferred share purchase rights (the "Rights") pursuant to a
Shareholder Rights Plan. The Rights initially trade with shares of the
Company's common stock and have no impact upon the way in which shareholders
can trade the Company's common stock. However, ten days after a person or
group acquires 15% or more of the Company's common stock, or such date, if
any, as the Board of Directors may designate after a person or group commences
or publicly announces its intention to commence a tender or exchange offer
which could result in that person or group owning 15% or more of the common
stock (even if no purchases actually occur), the Rights will become
exercisable and separate certificates representing the Rights will be
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distributed. The Rights would then begin to trade independently from the
Company's shares at that time.
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings
per share:
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

<S>
Numerator:
Net income.........................
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per
share--weighted average shares....
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock options and warrants.........
Denominator for diluted earnings
per share--adjusted weighted
average shares and assumed
conversion of stock options and
warrants..........................
Basic earnings (loss) per common
share...............................
Diluted earnings (loss) per common
share...............................
</TABLE>

Fiscal Year Ended
-------------------------------------December 27, December 28, December 29,
1998
1997
1996
------------ ------------ -----------<C>
<C>
<C>
$

1,193

$

363

$

370

2,664,192

1,999,961

1,999,961

94,747

123,823

146,784

2,758,939

2,123,784

2,146,745

$

0.45

$

0.18

$

0.19

$

0.43

$

0.17

$

0.17

7. Segment Information and Store Closures
The Company reports operating results in two segments due to distinct
geographical and operational differences. These two segments include the
Company's discount retail stores located in its island markets and those
located on the U.S. mainland. Other business activities include wholesale
sales directly from the Company's distribution facilities.
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These sales are not significant to include as a separate segment and are
aggregated with other income and expenses that are not directly related to the
operations of the stores in the particular segments.
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

<S>
Year Ended December 27, 1998

Island Mainland
Stores
Stores
Other
Totals
-------- -------- ------ -------(in thousands)
<C>
<C>
<C>
<C>
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Net sales................................... $125,433 $ 6,782
Contribution................................
6,690
(94)
Depreciation................................
727
69
Store opening expense.......................
747
-Store closing expense.......................
238
-Operating profit (loss).....................
5,705
(94)
Segment inventories.........................
12,387
806
Segment total assets........................
26,363
1,328
Year Ended December 28, 1997
Net sales................................... $111,480 $10,684
Contribution................................
5,635
(160)
Depreciation................................
579
110
Store opening expense.......................
327
-Store closing expense.......................
-1,346
Operating profit (loss).....................
5,308 (1,506)
Segment inventories.........................
8,655
764
Segment total assets........................
16,240
1,350
Year Ended December 29, 1996
Net sales................................... $111,413 $23,407
Contribution................................
5,212
(415)
Depreciation................................
556
272
Store closing expense.......................
-918
Operating profit (loss).....................
5,212 (1,333)
Segment inventories.........................
9,543
2,996
Segment total assets........................
16,140
5,154
</TABLE>

$1,646 $133,861
628
7,224
-796
-747
-238
628
6,239
-13,193
-27,691
$2,701 $124,865
450
5,925
-689
-327
-1,346
450
4,252
-9,419
-17,590
$

-- $134,820
356
5,153
-828
-918
356
4,235
-12,539
-21,294

Reconciliation of Contribution to Consolidated Income before Income Taxes
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

<S>
Total contribution for reportable
segments..............................
Other contribution.....................
Administrative expense not allocated to
segments..............................
Store opening/closing expenses.........
Other (expense)........................
Interest expense.......................

Fiscal Year Ended
-------------------------------------December 27, December 28, December 29,
1998
1997
1996
------------ ------------ -----------<C>
<C>
<C>

Consolidated income before income
taxes.................................

$ 6,596
628

$ 5,475
450

$ 4,797
356

(4,139)
(985)
(10)
(257)
-------

(3,225)
(1,673)
(40)
(427)
-------

(3,039)
(918)
-(605)
-------

$ 1,833
=======

$
560
=======

$
591
=======

</TABLE>
41
COST-U-LESS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(Continued)
Reconciliation of Significant Items
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<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Segment
Consolidated
Totals Corporate
Totals
------- --------- -----------(in thousands)
<C>
<C>
<C>

<S>
December 27, 1998
Other significant items
Depreciation..................................... $
796
Inventories...................................... 13,193
Total assets..................................... 27,691
December 28, 1997
Other significant items
Depreciation..................................... $
689
Inventories......................................
9,419
Total assets..................................... 17,590
December 29, 1996
Other significant items
Depreciation..................................... $
828
Inventories...................................... 12,539
Total assets..................................... 21,294
</TABLE>

$

296
3,492
9,526

$ 1,092
16,685
37,217

$

$

$

$ 1,089
14,938
24,856

228
2,852
5,225
261
2,399
3,562

917
12,271
22,815

Geographic Information
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Long-lived
Sales
Assets
-------- ---------(in thousands)
<C>
<C>

<S>
1998
United States............................................. $ 30,798
Other foreign countries*.................................. 103,063
-------$133,861
========
1997
United States............................................. $ 34,801
Other foreign countries*..................................
90,064
-------$124,865
========
1996
United States............................................. $ 46,548
Other foreign countries*..................................
88,272
-------$134,820
========
</TABLE>
-------*Including U.S. territories.
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$ 3,857
9,671
------$13,528
=======
$ 3,451
3,914
------$ 7,365
=======
$ 4,091
3,756
------$ 7,847
=======

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(Continued)
In 1996, the Company closed the Maui, Hawaii and San Jose, California stores.
In 1997, the Company closed the Davis, California and Walla Walla, Washington
stores. In 1998, the existing St. Thomas store was closed upon completion of
the newly constructed St. Thomas store. The following represents the costs
charged to expense related to the store closures for the indicated fiscal
years:
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
December 27, December 28, December 29,
1998
1997(1)
1996
------------ ------------ -----------(in thousands)
<S>
<C>
<C>
<C>
Lease buyout.........................
$ -$ 421
$225
Leasehold improvement writeoff.......
210
635
530
Other closure costs..................
28
290
163
-----------$238
$1,346
$918
====
======
====
</TABLE>
-------(1) The 1997 charge of $1,346,000 includes $256,000 of additional closure costs
related to stores closed in prior years.
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

<S>
Accrued store closure expense at
beginning of year.................
Store closure expense paid during
year..............................
Accruals for store closures during
year..............................
Accrued store closure expense at
end of year.......................

December 27, December 28, December 29,
1998
1997
1996
------------ ------------ -----------(in thousands)
<C>
<C>
<C>
$ 15

$

320

$392

253

1,651

990

238
----

1,346
------

918
----

$ -====

$
15
======

$320
====

</TABLE>
Total revenues and net operating losses contributed by the stores closed were
as follows:
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
1997
1996
------ ------(in thousands)
<S>
<C>
<C>
Total revenues............................................... $3,433 $15,691
====== =======
Store operating losses....................................... $ 243 $
608
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====== =======
</TABLE>
The store closure in 1998 was due to a new store replacing the closed store
and is therefore not included.
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8. Lease Commitments
The Company has entered into operating leases for retail and administrative
office locations. The leases range from 5 to 15 years and include renewal
options. The Company is required to pay a base rent, plus insurance, taxes,
and maintenance. The Company also leases equipment that may be purchased for a
nominal amount on expiration of the lease.
A summary of the Company's future minimum lease obligations under leases
with initial or remaining terms of one year or more is as follows:
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

<S>
1999......................................................
2000......................................................
2001......................................................
2002......................................................
2003......................................................
Thereafter................................................

Amounts representing interest.............................
Present value of net minimum lease payments...............

Operating Capital
Lease
Lease
--------- ------(in thousands)
<C>
<C>
$ 4,226 $ 537
4,199
761
4,190
-3,911
-3,459
-15,287
-------- -----$35,272
1,298
=======
(122)
-----$1,176
======

</TABLE>
Rent expense under operating leases for the fiscal years ended December 27,
1998, December 28, 1997, and December 29, 1996 totaled $3,702,000, $3,817,000,
and $4,103,000, respectively.
Total minimum capital lease payments include $431,000 of residual value
payments to be paid in fiscal year 2000.
Subsequent to December 27, 1998, the Company entered into a land lease
agreement for property in St. Marteen, Netherlands Antilles. The lease is a
25-year lease with three ten-year renewal options. The Company will construct
a 36,000 square foot store on the property. The monthly rental rate for the
St. Marteen land is $16,000 per month. The lease will be subject to charges
for taxes and insurance that will be paid by the Company. Lease payments will
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not begin until the building is completed, which is expected to be completed
by the end of fiscal year 1999.
9. Employee Benefit Plans
The Company maintains a 40l(k) profit-sharing plan covering all eligible
employees. Participating employees may elect to defer and contribute a stated
percentage of their compensation to the plan, not to exceed the dollar limit
set by law. The Company matches 25% of each employee's contribution, up to a
maximum of the first 15% of each employee's compensation. The Company's
matching contributions to the plan approximated $87,000, $75,000, and $70,000
in fiscal 1998, 1997, and 1996, respectively.
The Company also has a Manager Bonus Program, under which managers are paid
an annual bonus based on the net income of the Company. All amounts payable
under the program are accrued in the year earned. Accordingly, bonuses accrued
under the program totalled $257,000, $213,000, and $143,000 for fiscal 1998,
1997 and, 1996, respectively.
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10. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
The following is a summary of the Company's unaudited quarterly results of
operations:
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Store
Weeks
in
Net
Period Sales
------ ------(in thousands,

Gross
Profit
-----except
share
<C>

Earnings
(Loss) Per
Net
Common Share(1)
Income --------------(Loss) Basic
Diluted
------ ------ ------store weeks and perdata)
<C>
<C>
<C>

<S>
<C>
<C>
Fiscal 1998
First quarter..................... 104
$31,753 $5,202 $ 325
Second quarter (1)................ 104
31,452 5,293
62
Third quarter..................... 114
32,958 5,457
288
Fourth quarter.................... 123
37,698 6,372
518
Fiscal 1997
First quarter (2)................. 130
$31,789 $5,066 $(278)
Second quarter (3)................ 117
31,868 5,240
3
Third quarter..................... 104
29,747 4,876
264
Fourth quarter.................... 104
31,461 5,286
374
</TABLE>
-------(1) Includes store closure costs of $238,000.
(2) Includes store closure costs of $700,000.
(3) Includes store closure costs of $600,000.
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$ 0.16
0.03
0.09
0.15

$ 0.15
0.03
0.09
0.14

$(0.14) $(0.14)
0.00
0.00
0.13
0.12
0.19
0.17

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and
Financial Disclosure
None.
PART III
Item 10. Executive Officers and Directors of the Registrant
Information called for by Part III, Item 10, is included in the Company's
Proxy Statement relating to the Company's annual meeting of shareholders to be
held on May 20, 1999, and is incorporated herein by reference. Such Proxy
Statement will be filed within 120 days of December 27, 1998, the Company's
fiscal year end.
Item 11. Executive Compensation
Information called for by Part III, Item 11, is included in the Company's
Proxy Statement relating to the Company's annual meeting of shareholders to be
held on May 20, 1999, and is incorporated herein by reference. Such Proxy
Statement will be filed within 120 days of December 27, 1998, the Company's
fiscal year end.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management
Information called for by Part III, Item 12, is included in the Company's
Proxy Statement relating to the Company's annual meeting of shareholders to be
held on May 20, 1999, and is incorporated herein by reference. Such Proxy
Statement will be filed within 120 days of December 27, 1998, the Company's
fiscal year end.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
Information called for by Part III, Item 13, is included in the Company's
Proxy Statement relating to the Company's annual meeting of shareholders to be
held on May 20, 1999, and is incorporated herein by reference. Such Proxy
Statement will be filed within 120 days of December 27, 1998, the Company's
fiscal year end.
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PART IV
Item 14. Exhibits, Financial Statements, Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K
(a) Documents filed as part of this Report:
(1) Financial Statements--all consolidated financial statements of the
Company as set forth under Item 8, beginning on p. 27 of this Report.
(2) Financial Statement Schedules--Schedule II Valuation and Qualifying
Accounts.
The independent auditors' report with respect to the financial statement
schedules appears on page 34 of this Report. All other financial statements
and schedules not listed are omitted because either they are not applicable or
not required, or the required information is included in the consolidated
financial statements.
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(3) Exhibits.
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Exhibit
No.
Description
----------------<C>
<S>
3.1*
Restated Articles of Incorporation of Cost-U-Less, Inc.
3.2*
Amended and Restated Bylaws of Cost-U-Less, Inc.
10.1*
1998 Stock Incentive Compensation Plan
10.2*
Amended and Restated 1989 Stock Option Plan
10.3*
Form of Director Stock Option Agreement (Vesting)
10.4*
Form of Director Stock Option Agreement (Nonvesting)
10.5*
Manager Bonus Program
10.6*
Common Stock Purchase Warrant between the Company and Michael J. Rose
10.7*
Business Loan Agreement between Bank of America NT & SA dba Seafirst
Bank and the Company, dated April 28, 1998
10.8*
Promissory Note between Bank of America NT & SA dba Seafirst Bank and
the Company, dated December 31, 1997 [update]
10.9*
Construction/Permanent Loan Agreement by and among CULUSVI, Inc., the
Company and Banco Popular de Puerto Rico, dated November 6, 1997
10.10* Lease Agreement between Westmall Limited and the Company, effective
March 1, 1998
10.11** Lease Agreement between Fiji Public Service Association and the
Company, dated June 4, 1998
10.12* Lease Agreement between Baroud Real Estate Development N.V. and the
Company, dated April 3, 1998
10.13* Ground Lease between Market Square East, Inc. and the Company, dated
October 20, 1997
10.14* Month-to-Month Rental Agreement (Gross) between Whipple Road
Associates and the Company, dated January 6, 1995
10.15* Sublease Agreement between Tamuning Capital Investment, Inc. and the
Company dated July 15, 1994
10.16* Lease Agreement between Ottoville Development Company and the Company,
dated March 9, 1994
10.17* Lease Agreement between Inmostrat Corporation and the Company, dated
August 1993
10.18* Lease Agreement between Hassan Rahman and the Company, dated July 30,
1993
10.19* Industrial Real Estate Lease (Single-Tenant Facility) between Hilo
Partners and the Company, dated September 1, 1991
10.20* Indenture of Lease between Kai Pacific Limited and the Company, dated
August 30, 1991
10.21* Lease Agreement between Tonko Reyes, Inc. and the Company, dated July
1991
10.22* Letter Agreement between Streamline Capital Corporation and the
Company, dated December 5, 1997, as amended March 12, 1998
10.23
Purchase Agreement between Kula Fund and the Company, dated July 28,
1998
10.24
Common Stock Purchase Warrant between Kula Fund and the Company, dated
July 28, 1998
</TABLE>
47
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
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Exhibit
No.
Description
----------------<C>
<S>
10.25*** Rights Agreement dated March 15, 1999 between the Company and
ChaseMellon Shareholder Services, L.L.C., as rights agent
10.26
Lease Agreement between Caribe Lumber & Trading N.V. (St. Maarten)
and the Company, dated February 19, 1999
21.1
Subsidiaries of the Company
24.1
Power of Attorney (see page 49).
27.1
Financial Data Schedule
</TABLE>
-------*
Incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S1 (Registration No. 333-52459).
**

Incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
dated September 2, 1998.

*** Incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration Statement on Form 8A dated March 15, 1999.
(b) Reports on Form 8-K:
None.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, the Company has duly caused this Report to be signed on
its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
COST-U-LESS, INC.
Date: March 26, 1999

By:

/s/ Michael J. Rose
--------------------------------Michael J. Rose
Chairman of the Board, President
and Chief Executive Officer

Each person whose individual signature appears below hereby authorizes and
appoints Michael J. Rose and Allan C. Youngberg, and each of them, with full
power of substitution and resubstitution and full power to act without the
other, as his or her true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent to act in his
or her name, place and stead and to execute in the name and on behalf of each
person, individually and in each capacity stated below, and to file, any and
all amendments to this Report, and to file the same, with all exhibits
thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each
of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and
thing, ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents or
any of them or their or his or her substitute or substitutes may lawfully do
or cause to be done by virtue thereof.
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this
Report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Company
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and in the capacities indicated below on the 26th day of March, 1999.
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Signature
---------

Title
-----

<S>

<C>
/s/ Michael J. Rose
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief
------------------------------------ Executive Officer (Principal Executive
Michael J. Rose
Officer)
/s/ Allan Youngberg
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial
------------------------------------ Officer, Secretary and Treasurer
Allan Youngberg
(Principal Financial and Accounting
Officer)
/s/ Ashley Emberson-Bain
Director
-----------------------------------Ashley Emberson-Bain
/s/ David A. Enger
Director
-----------------------------------David A. Enger
/s/ Donald L. Gevirtz
Director
-----------------------------------Donald L. Gevirtz
/s/ Wayne V. Keener
Director
-----------------------------------Wayne V. Keener
/s/ Gary W. Nettles
Director
-----------------------------------Gary W. Nettles
/s/ George C. Textor
Director
-----------------------------------George C. Textor
</TABLE>
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SCHEDULE II
COST-U-LESS, INC.
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Description
----------<S>
Year Ended December 27, 1998:
Reserves and allowances deducted

Balance
Balance at
at End
Beginning of
of
Period
Additions Deductions Period
------------ --------- ---------- -------<C>
<C>
<C>
<C>
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from asset accounts:
Allowance for doubtful accounts....
$25,000
$127,000
$ 9,000
Year Ended December 28, 1997:
Reserves and allowances deducted
from asset accounts:
Allowance for doubtful accounts....
25,000
38,000
38,000
Year Ended December 29, 1996:
Reserves and allowances deducted
from asset accounts:
Allowance for doubtful accounts....
$
0
94,000
69,000
</TABLE>
-------(1) Uncollectible accounts written off, net of recoveries.

$143,000

25,000

$ 25,000
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Exhibit
No.
------<C>
3.1*
3.2*
10.1*
10.2*
10.3*
10.4*
10.5*
10.6*
10.7*
10.8*
10.9*
10.10*
10.11**
10.12*
10.13*
10.14*
10.15*
10.16*
10.17*
10.18*
10.19*
10.20*

Description
----------<S>
Restated Articles of Incorporation of Cost-U-Less, Inc.
Amended and Restated Bylaws of Cost-U-Less, Inc.
1998 Stock Incentive Compensation Plan
Amended and Restated 1989 Stock Option Plan
Form of Director Stock Option Agreement (Vesting)
Form of Director Stock Option Agreement (Nonvesting)
Manager Bonus Program
Common Stock Purchase Warrant between the Company and Michael J. Rose
Business Loan Agreement between Bank of America NT & SA dba Seafirst
Bank and the Company, dated April 28, 1998
Promissory Note between Bank of America NT & SA dba Seafirst Bank and
the Company, dated December 31, 1997 [update]
Construction/Permanent Loan Agreement by and among CULUSVI, Inc., the
Company and Banco Popular de Puerto Rico, dated November 6, 1997
Lease Agreement between Westmall Limited and the Company, effective
March 1, 1998
Lease Agreement between Fiji Public Service Association and the
Company, dated June 4, 1998
Lease Agreement between Baroud Real Estate Development N.V. and the
Company, dated April 3, 1998
Ground Lease between Market Square East, Inc. and the Company, dated
October 20, 1997
Month-to-Month Rental Agreement (Gross) between Whipple Road
Associates and the Company, dated January 6, 1995
Sublease Agreement between Tamuning Capital Investment, Inc. and the
Company dated July 15, 1994
Lease Agreement between Ottoville Development Company and the
Company, dated March 9, 1994
Lease Agreement between Inmostrat Corporation and the Company, dated
August 1993
Lease Agreement between Hassan Rahman and the Company, dated July 30,
1993
Industrial Real Estate Lease (Single-Tenant Facility) between Hilo
Partners and the Company, dated September 1, 1991
Indenture of Lease between Kai Pacific Limited and the Company, dated
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August 30, 1991
Lease Agreement between Tonko Reyes, Inc. and the Company, dated July
1991
10.22*
Letter Agreement between Streamline Capital Corporation and the
Company, dated December 5, 1997, as amended March 12, 1998
10.23
Purchase Agreement between Kula Fund and the Company, dated July 28,
1998
10.24
Common Stock Purchase Warrant between Kula Fund and the Company,
dated July 28, 1998
10.25*** Rights Agreement dated March 15, 1999 between the Company and
ChaseMellon Shareholder Services, L.L.C., as rights agent
10.26
Lease Agreement between Caribe Lumber & Trading N.V. (St. Maarten)
and the Company, dated February 19, 1999
21.1
Subsidiaries of the Company
24.1
Power of Attorney (see page 42).
27.1
Financial Data Schedule
</TABLE>
-------*
Incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S1 (Registration No. 333-52459).
10.21*

**

Incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
dated September 2, 1998.

*** Incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration Statement on Form 8A dated March 15, 1999.
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EXHIBIT 10.23
PURCHASE AGREEMENT
This Purchase Agreement (the "Agreement") is made this 28th day of July,
1998, between Cost-U-Less Inc. (the "Company"), a Washington corporation and
Kula Fund Limited (the "Purchaser"), a Vanuatu registered company.
RECITALS
A. The Company is proposing to sell shares of its Common Stock (the
"Common Stock") in an initial public offering (the "Public Offering") as set
forth in Amendment No. 3 to Registration Statement on Form S-1 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") on June 23, 1998 and subsequent
amendments to such registration statement filed with the SEC to and including
the date of this Agreement (the "Registration Statement"). The Registration
Statement is currently being reviewed by the SEC and the Company contemplates
conducting the Public Offering upon the effectiveness of the Registration
Statement.
B. The Company desires to sell to the Purchaser and the Purchaser desires
to purchase from the Company 160,000 shares of Common Stock in a transaction
exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "1933
Act") pursuant to Regulation S under such 1933 Act and to consummate such
transaction simultaneously with the closing of the Public Offering.
C. The Company also desires to sell to the Purchaser for consideration of
$100 a warrant to purchase 117,000 shares of Common Stock on the terms and
conditions set forth in the form of Warrant attached hereto as Exhibit A (the
"Warrant").
D. The Company has executed the Agreement concurrently with the
underwriting agreement contemplated in connection with the Public Offering.
AGREEMENT
In consideration of the mutual covenants contained in this Agreement, the
Company and the Purchaser agree as follows:
1.

Purchase and Sale of Shares
1.1

Purchase and Sale

On the basis of the representations, warranties and agreements herein
contained, but subject to the conditions herein set forth, the Company agrees to
issue and sell to the Purchaser and the Purchaser agrees to purchase from the
Company, (a) 160,000 shares of Common Stock (the "Shares") at a purchase price
per share equal to the price the Common Stock is initially offered to the public
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in the Public Offering, and (b) the Warrant at a price of $100.
1.2

Closing

Delivery of the definitive certificates for the Shares shall be made
against payment of the purchase price therefor by the Purchaser by certified or
official bank check payable to the order of the Company or by wire transfer of
funds to the account of the Company at the date and time of the closing of the
public offering as contemplated in the underwriting agreement between the
Company and the representatives of the underwriters (the "Closing" and the
"Closing Date"). Delivery of the Warrant shall be made against payment of the
price therefor at the Closing.
2.

Representations and Warranties of the Company
The Company hereby represents and warrants to the Purchaser as follows:
2.1

Existence and Qualification

The Company is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and
authorized to transact business in the corporate form under the laws of the
State of Washington. The Company is duly qualified to do business and in good
standing as a foreign corporation in each jurisdiction where standing to so
qualify or be in good standing as a foreign corporation could reasonably be
expected to have a material adverse effect on it business, operations,
properties or condition (financial or otherwise), or its ability to perform its
obligations under this Agreement.
2.2

Power and Authority

The Company has all corporate power and authority necessary to own,
operate or lease its properties and assets and to conduct its business as now
conducted by it. The Company has all corporate power and authority necessary to
issue the Shares and the Warrant and to execute, deliver, and perform its
obligations under this Agreement under the Warrant.
-22.3

Corporate Action

The Company has taken all corporate action required to authorize the
issuance of the Shares and the Warrant and the execution, delivery and
performance of the Agreement and of the Warrant. The Company has duly executed
and delivered the Agreement. The Warrant and the certificates representing the
Shares have been duly and properly authorized.
2.4

Consents; Governmental Approvals

No consent or approval of any person, firm or corporation, and no
consent, license, approval or authorization of, or registration, filing or
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declaration with, any governmental authority is required to be obtained or made
by or on behalf of the Company in connection with the issuance and sale of the
Shares or the Warrant, the execution, delivery or performance of the Agreement
or the completion of the transactions contemplated thereby, except for (i) the
approval of the Board of Directors of the Company, and (ii) filings with the SEC
and Nasdaq.
2.5

Binding Effect

The Agreement is, and the Warrant when executed will be, a legal,
valid and binding obligation of the Company, enforceable against the Company in
accordance with its terms, except as enforceability may be limited by applicable
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or similar laws affecting the
enforcement of creditors' rights generally or limitations on the availability of
equitable remedies and except as rights to indemnification and contribution may
be limited under federal and state securities laws.
2.6

Absence of Conflicts

The issuance of the Shares and the Warrant and the execution, delivery
and performance of the Agreement by the Company do not and will not (i) conflict
with or violate any provision of its Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws, (ii)
conflict with or result in a violation, breach or default by the Company under
(x) any provision of any existing statute, law, rule or regulation binding on it
or any order, judgment, award, decree, license or authorization of any court or
governmental instrumentality, authority, bureau or agency binding on it, or (y)
any material provision of any mortgage, indenture, lease or other contract,
agreement, instrument or undertaking to which it is a party or will be a party
immediately after the Closing, or by which or to which it or any of its property
or assets is now or immediately after the Closing will be bound or subject, or
(iii) result in the creation or imposition of any lien, encumbrance or other
charge on any of its properties or assets.
-32.7

No Defaults

None of the Company or its subsidiaries is, or immediately after the
Closing will be, in default under or in violation of (i) its Articles of
Incorporation or Bylaws, (ii) any agreement or instrument to which it is a party
relating to its indebtedness for borrowed money, (iii) any other agreement or
instrument to which it is a party, (iv) any statute, rule, writ, injunction,
judgment, decree, order or regulation of any court or governmental authority
having jurisdiction over it, or (v) any license, permit, certification or
approval requirement of any customer, supplier, governmental authority or other
person, in any way that could reasonably be expected to have a material adverse
effect on the business, operations, properties, assets or condition (financial
or otherwise) of the Company or the Company's ability to perform its obligations
under any of such agreements.

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

2.8

Capitalization and Stockholders

The entire authorized, issued and outstanding capital stock of the
Company was as set forth in the Registration Statement, on and as of the dates
indicated therein. Immediately after the Closing, all outstanding shares of
capital stock will be duly and validly issued and, except as described in the
Registration Statement, there will be no options, warrants or other rights
outstanding involving the issuance of any additional shares of capital stock of
the Company.
2.9

Registration Statement

The Company has furnished to the Purchaser a true and correct copy of
the Registration Statement. The Registration Statement, at the time it was
filed with the SEC, did not contain any untrue statement of a material fact, or
omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in
order to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which
they were made, not misleading. The Registration Statement when filed with the
SEC complied in all material respects with the applicable requirements of the
1933 Act.
2.10

Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Company included in the Registration
Statement comply as to form in all material respects with applicable accounting
requirements and the published rules and regulations of the SEC or other
applicable rules and regulations with respect thereto. Such financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles applied on a consistent basis during the periods involved (except as
may be otherwise indicated in such financial statements or the notes thereto)
and fairly present in all material
-4respects the financial position of the Company as of the dates thereof and the
results of operations and cash flows for the periods then ended (subject, in the
case of unaudited statements, to normal year-end audit adjustments).
2.11

No Material Adverse Change

Since March 31, 1998, there has been no material adverse change in the
businesses, properties, prospects, operations or financial condition of the
Company and its Subsidiaries, except as otherwise disclosed or reflected in the
Registration Statement, or otherwise disclosed in writing to the Purchasers on
or before the Closing Date.
2.12

Brokers

The Company represents and warrants that, except with respect to the
employment by the Company of Cruttenden Roth Incorporated as an agent and the
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employment of Streamline Capital Corporation as financial adviser, it has
employed no brokers, agents or finders in carrying on the negotiations relating
to this Agreement or to the transactions herein contemplated.
2.13

Status of Shares

The Shares, upon issuance by the Company following receipt of the
consideration provided for herein and satisfaction of the other conditions set
forth herein, will be duly authorized, fully paid and nonassessable. The shares
issuable on exercise of the Warrant will be, when issued in accordance with the
terms of the Warrant, duly authorized, fully paid and nonassessable.
2.14

Securities Compliance

(a) The Company is a Domestic Issuer (as that term is defined in Rule
902 of Regulation S of the 1933 Act).
(b) Except with respect to securities offered and sold in the Public
Offering, neither the Company nor any of its affiliates, nor any person acting
on its or their behalf, has made or will make:
(i) any offer to sell, or any solicitation of an offer to buy, any of
Shares or Warrants to a U.S. Person or a person in the United States, or
(ii) any sale of the Shares or Warrants unless, at the time the buy
order was or will have been originated, the purchaser was outside the
United
-5States or the Company, its affiliates, and any person acting on its or
their behalf reasonably believe that the purchaser is outside the United
States.
(c) During the period in which the Shares or Warrants are offered for
sale, neither it nor any of its affiliates, nor any person acting on its or
their behalf has made or will make any Directed Selling Efforts (as that term is
defined in Rule 902 of Regulation S of the 1933 Act), or has taken or will take
any action that would cause the exclusion from registration afforded by
Regulation S to be unavailable for the offer and sale of the Shares or the
Warrants.
(d) The Company is not an open-end investment company or unit
investment trust registered or required to be registered or closed-end
investment company required to be registered, but not registered, under the
United States Investment Company Act of 1940.
(e) The Company will refuse to register any transfer of the Shares or
the Warrant if such transfer is not made in accordance with the legend set forth
in Section 3.1(f) hereof.
Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

3.

Representations and Warranties of the Purchaser
The Purchaser represents and warrants to the Company as follows:
3.1

Status of the Purchaser; Regulation S

(a) The Purchaser acknowledges that the Shares and Warrant have not
been and will not be registered under the 1933 Act, or any applicable state
securities law, and therefore constitute "restricted securities" within the
meaning of Rule 144 thereof, and that the contemplated issuance may not be
offered or sold in the United States or for the account or benefit of U.S.
Persons (as described below) in reliance on an exclusion from such registration
pursuant to Regulation S of the 1933 Act;
(b) The Purchaser understands that if it decides to offer, sell or
otherwise transfer any of the Shares, the Warrant or the shares issuable on
exercise of the Warrant, it will not offer, sell or otherwise transfer any of
such securities, directly or indirectly, unless (i) the disposition is to the
Company; (ii) the disposition is made outside the United States in compliance
with the requirements of Rule 903 or Rule 904 of Regulation S, if available (or
such successor rule or regulation as then in effect); (iii) there is in effect a
registration statement under the 1933 Act covering such proposed disposition and
such disposition is made in accordance with such registration statement and any
applicable state securities laws; (iv) the disposition
-6complies in all respects with Rule 144 or Rule 145 under the 1933 Act and any
applicable state securities laws, or (v) in a transaction that does not require
registration under the 1933 Act and any applicable state securities laws and it
has, prior to such disposition, furnished to the Company an opinion of counsel
of recognized standing reasonably satisfactory to the Company;
(c) The Purchaser will not engage in hedging transactions with regard
to the Shares or Warrant during the one year "distribution compliance period"
beginning on the date of the Closing unless in compliance with the 1933 Act;
(d) The Purchaser (i) is not a U.S. Person (as such term is defined in
Regulation S) and is not acquiring the Shares or Warrant for the account or
benefit of a U.S. Person and (ii) was not offered, did not execute and did not
deliver this Agreement while in the United States;
(e) The Shares and Warrant are being acquired for investment purposes,
not as a nominee or agent, and not with a view to any resale, distribution or
other disposition of the Shares or Warrant, of any part thereof, in violation of
the 1933 Act or applicable state securities laws;
(f) The Purchaser is an "accredited investor" as that term is defined
in Rule (501(a) under the 1933 Act, has such knowledge, sophistication and
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experience in business and financial matters so as to be capable of evaluating
the merits and risks of the prospective investment in the Shares and Warrant,
has so evaluated the merits and risks of such investment and is able to bear the
economic risk of such investment and, at the present time, is able to afford a
complete loss of such investment.
(g) The Purchaser understands that upon the original issuance thereof,
and until such time as the same is no longer required under applicable
requirements of the 1933 Act or applicable state securities laws, certificates
representing the Shares, and all certificates issued in exchange therefore or in
substitution thereof, shall bear the following legend:
THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE
UNITED STATES SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "SECURITIES ACT"),
AND MAY BE OFFERED, SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED ONLY (A) TO THE COMPANY,
(B) OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES IN ACCORDANCE WITH RULE 903 OR RULE 904 OF
REGULATION S UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, IF AVAILABLE, (C) PURSUANT TO AN
EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND IN
-7COMPLIANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS, (D) IN A TRANSACTION
THAT COMPLIES IN ALL RESPECTS WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF RULE 144 OR RULE 145
UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, IF AVAILABLE, AND IN COMPLIANCE WITH ANY STATE
SECURITIES LAWS, (E) IN A TRANSACTION THAT DOES NOT REQUIRE REGISTRATION
UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND ANY APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS AND,
PRIOR TO SUCH DISPOSITION, THE HOLDER HAS FURNISHED TO THE COMPANY AN
OPINION OF COUNSEL OF RECOGNIZED STANDING REASONABLY SATISFACTORY TO THE
COMPANY.
THE HOLDER HEREOF MAY NOT ENGAGE IN ANY HEDGING TRANSACTIONS WITH
RESPECT TO THE SECURITIES EVIDENCED HEREBY FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR FROM
THE DATE OF ORIGINAL ISSUANCE UNLESS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE SECURITIES ACT.
(i) The Purchaser acknowledges that the Company will refuse to
register any transfer of the Shares or Warrant if such transfer is not made in
accordance with the legend set forth in subparagraph (g) above.
3.2

Authorization and Execution

The purchase of the Shares and Warrant to be acquired hereunder has
been duly and properly authorized by the Purchaser by all necessary action and
the Agreement have been duly executed and delivered by it and neither the
purchase of the Shares and the Warrant to be acquired hereunder nor the
execution and performance of the Agreement conflicts with or violates its
operating agreement or any law, regulation or court order applicable to it or
any other agreement to which it is subject.
3.3

The Purchaser's Investigation
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The Purchaser has made such examination, review and investigation of
facts and circumstances necessary to evaluate the purchase of the Shares and
Warrant to be acquired hereunder as it has deemed necessary or appropriate and
has made its own investment determination and analysis based upon such
information as the Purchaser deemed sufficient to enter into this Agreement and
not based on any statements or representations by the Company.
-83.4

Organization

The Purchaser is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing
under the laws of Vanuatu. The Purchaser has all requisite power and authority
to own and lease its properties and to carry on its business as presently
conducted except where a lack of such power would not reasonably be expected to
have a material adverse effect upon the financial condition, business, or
results of operations of the Purchaser. The Purchaser has all the power and
authority necessary to execute, deliver and perform its obligations under the
Agreement.
3.5

Consents; Governmental Approvals

No consent or approval of any person, firm or corporation, and no
consent, license, approval or authorization of, or registration, filing or
declaration with, any governmental authority is required to be obtained or made
by or on behalf of the Purchaser in connection with the purchase of the Shares
and Warrant, the execution, delivery or performance by the Purchaser of any of
the Agreements or the completion of the transactions contemplated thereby.
3.6

Binding Effect

The Agreement is a legal, valid and binding obligation of the
Purchaser, enforceable against the Purchaser in accordance with its terms,
except as enforceability may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, moratorium or similar laws affecting the enforcement of
creditors' rights generally or limitations on the availability of equitable
remedies and except as rights to indemnification and contribution may be limited
under federal and state securities laws.
4.

Conditions to Obligations of the Purchaser

The obligation of the Purchaser to purchase Shares and Warrant
hereunder on the Closing Date shall be subject to the satisfaction of each of
the following conditions precedent on the Closing Date:
4.1

No Governmental Proceeding or Litigation

At the Closing Date, no order, injunction, decree or judgment of any
court or administrative agency shall be in effect which restrains or prohibits
the transactions contemplated hereby, and no suit, action, investigation,
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inquiry or proceeding by any governmental body, or legal or administrative
proceeding by any governmental body shall have been instituted, or threatened in
writing, which questions the validity or legality of the transactions
contemplated hereby.
-94.2

Additional Documents

The Purchaser shall have received all such agreements, documents,
instruments, approvals, certificates, legal opinions and information as the
Purchaser shall reasonably request in connection with this Agreement, the
Shares, the Warrant and the transactions herein and therein contemplated, all of
which shall be in form and in substance reasonably satisfactory to the
Purchaser.
4.3

Public Offering

The closing of the Public Offering shall have occurred.
5.

Conditions to the Company's Obligations

The obligations of the Company to consummate the sale of the Shares and the
Warrant shall be subject to the satisfaction, on or before the Closing Date, of
the following conditions:
5.1

No Governmental Proceeding or Litigation

At the Closing Date, no order, injunction, decree or judgment of any
court or administrative agency shall be in effect which restrains or prohibits
the transactions contemplated hereby, and no suit, action, investigation,
inquiry or proceeding by any governmental body, or legal or administrative
proceeding by any governmental body shall have been instituted, or threatened in
writing, which questions the validity or legality of the transactions
contemplated hereby.
5.2

Additional Documents

The Company shall have received all such agreements, documents,
instruments, approvals, certificates, legal opinions and information as the
Company shall reasonably request in connection with this Agreement, the Shares,
the Warrant and the transactions herein and therein contemplated, all of which
shall be in form and in substance reasonably satisfactory to the Company and its
counsel.
5.3

Public Offering

The closing of the Public Offering shall have occurred.
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6.

Survival and Indemnification
6.1

Survival of Agreements

The representations and warranties of the Company set forth in Section
2 and of the Purchaser set forth in Section 3 hereof shall survive the Closing
until the second anniversary of the date of this Agreement.
6.2

Indemnification by the Company

The Company shall indemnify and hold harmless the Purchaser from and
against any and all Losses suffered or incurred by the Purchaser as a result of
the breach or incorrectness of any representation and warranty of the Company
set forth in Section 2 of this Agreement. The Purchaser shall promptly notify
the Company in writing of the occurrence of any event, or of its discovery of
any facts, which in the Purchaser's opinion entitle or may entitle it to
indemnification hereunder. The Purchaser's failure to do so shall not preclude
it from seeking indemnification hereunder from the Company unless such failure
has materially prejudiced the Company's ability to defend as provided herein.
With respect to any threatened or asserted claims of third parties, the Company
shall have the right to defend such claims by counsel of their choosing and to
direct or control the defense and settlement thereof. The Purchaser shall
cooperate in all reasonable respects with such counsel. In no event shall the
indemnification obligations of the Company exceed the aggregate sale price of
the Shares sold by the Company pursuant to this Agreement, plus reasonable legal
fees and expenses.
6.3

Indemnification by the Purchaser

The Purchaser shall indemnify and hold harmless the Company from and
against any and all Losses suffered or incurred by the Company as a result of
the breach or incorrectness of any representation and warranty of the Purchaser
set forth in Section 3 of this Agreement. The Company shall promptly notify the
Purchaser in writing of the occurrence of any event, or of its discovery of any
facts, which in the Company's opinion entitle or may entitle it to
indemnification hereunder. The Company's failure to do so shall not preclude it
from seeking indemnification hereunder from the Purchaser unless such failure
has materially prejudiced the Purchaser's ability to defend as provided herein.
With respect to any threatened or asserted claims of third parties, the
Purchaser shall have the right to defend such claims by counsel of its choosing
and to direct or control the defense and settlement thereof. The Company shall
cooperate in all reasonable respects with such counsel. In no event shall the
indemnification obligations of the Purchaser exceed the
-11aggregate purchase price of the Shares purchased by the Purchaser pursuant to
this Agreement.
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7.

Termination

This Agreement shall be terminated and of no further force and effect upon
(a) the mutual agreement of the Company and the Purchaser or (b) the failure of
the Closing to occur hereunder by July 31, 1998.
8.

Miscellaneous
8.1

No Waiver; Modifications in Writing

(a) No failure or delay on the part of the Company or the Purchaser in
exercising any right, power or remedy hereunder shall operate as a waiver
thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such right, power or
remedy preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any
other right, power or remedy. The remedies provided for herein are cumulative
and are not exclusive of any remedies that may be available to the Company or
the Purchaser at law or in equity. No waiver of or consent to any departure by
the Company or the Purchaser from any provision of this Agreement shall be
effective unless in writing and signed by the party entitled to the benefit
thereof. No amendment, modification or termination of any provision of this
Agreement shall be effective unless in writing and signed by or on behalf of the
Company and the Purchaser. Any amendment, supplement or modification of or to
any of this Agreement, any waiver of any provision of this Agreement, and any
consent to any departure from the terms of any provision of this Agreement,
shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose
for which made or given.
8.2

Notices

All notices and demands provided for hereunder shall be in writing, ad
shall be given by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested,
telecopy, courier service or personal delivery, and, if to the Purchaser,
addressed to the Purchaser at:
Kula Fund Limited
2nd Floor, Law House
Kumul Highway
PO Box 166
Port Vila, Vanuatu
Attention: Liam Cully
-12or to such other address as the Purchaser may designate to the Company in
writing and, if to the Company, addressed to the Company at:
Cost-U-Less, Inc.
12410 S.E. 32nd Street
Bellevue, Washington 98005
Attention: Michael J. Rose
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or to such other address as the Company may designate in writing.
notices and demands shall be deemed given when received.
8.3

All such

Execution in Counterparts

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and by
different parties hereto on separate counterparts, each of which counterparts,
when so executed and delivered, shall be deemed to be an original and all of
which counterparts, taken together, shall constitute but one and the same
Agreement.
8.4

Binding Effect; Assignment

The rights of the Purchaser or the Company under this Agreement may
not be assigned to any other Person except with the prior written consent of the
other parties hereto. This Agreement shall not be construed so as to confer any
right or benefit upon any Person other than the parties to this Agreement, and
their respective successors and permitted assigns. This Agreement shall be
binding upon the Company and the Purchaser, and their respective successors and
permitted assigns.
8.5

GOVERNING LAW

This Agreement shall be deemed to be a contract made under the laws of
the State of Washington, and for all purposes shall be construed in accordance
with the laws of said state, without regard to principles of conflicts of laws.
8.6

Severability of Provisions

Any provision of this Agreement that is prohibited or unenforceable in
any jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent of
such prohibition or unenforceability without invalidating the remaining
provisions hereof or affecting the validity or enforceability of such provision
in any other jurisdiction.
-138.7

Headings

The Articles and Section headings used or contained in this Agreement
are for convenience of reference only and shall not affect the construction of
this Agreement.
8.8

No Reliance

Each party hereto acknowledges that it has obtained separate advice
with respect to the legal, tax and accounting consequences of the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement, and that it has neither sought nor relied upon
any such advice from any other party hereto or its Affiliates.
Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

8.9

Entire Agreement

This Agreement and agreements executed contemporaneously herewith
constitute the entire agreement among the parties with respect to the purchase
and sale of the Shares and the Warrant to be acquired by the Purchaser
hereunder, and, as of the date hereof, there are no promises or undertakings
with respect thereto relative to the subject matter hereof not expressly set
forth or referred to herein.
8.10

Further Assurances

Each of the Company and the Purchaser will execute and deliver or
cause to be executed and delivered such further instruments and do or cause to
be done such further acts as may be reasonably necessary to carry out its
obligations under this Agreement.
-14IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to
be executed as of the date first above written.
COST-U-LESS, INC.
By: /s/ MICHAEL J. ROSE
--------------------Name: Michael J. Rose
Title: President
KULA FUND LIMITED
By: /s/ ASHLEY EMBERSON-BAIN
-------------------------Name: Ashley Emberson Bain
Title: Managing Director
Pacific Capital Partners Limited
General Manager, Kula Fund Limited
-15-

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

EXHIBIT 10.24
NEITHER THE SECURITY EVIDENCED BY THIS WARRANT NOR THE SECURITIES ISSUABLE UPON
EXERCISE OF THIS WARRANT (OR THE SECURITIES ISSUABLE UPON CONVERSION OF THE
SECURITIES ISSUABLE UPON EXERCISE OF THIS WARRANT) HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER
THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "SECURITIES ACT") OR
APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS, AND MAY BE OFFERED, SOLD OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED ONLY (A) TO THE COMPANY, (B) OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES IN ACCORDANCE
WITH RULE 903 OR RULE 904 OF REGULATION S UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, IF
AVAILABLE, (C) PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT AND IN COMPLIANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS, (D)
IN A TRANSACTION THAT COMPLIES IN ALL RESPECTS WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF RULE 144
OR RULE 145 UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, IF AVAILABLE, AND IN COMPLIANCE WITH ANY
STATE SECURITIES LAWS, (E) IN A TRANSACTION THAT DOES NOT REQUIRE REGISTRATION
UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND ANY APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS AND, PRIOR TO
SUCH DISPOSITION, THE HOLDER HAS FURNISHED TO THE COMPANY AN OPINION OF COUNSEL
OF RECOGNIZED STANDING REASONABLY SATISFACTORY TO THE COMPANY.
THE HOLDER HEREOF MAY NOT ENGAGE IN ANY HEDGING TRANSACTIONS WITH RESPECT TO THE
SECURITIES EVIDENCED HEREBY FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR FROM THE DATE OF ORIGINAL
ISSUANCE UNLESS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE SECURITIES ACT.
No. W-1
ISSUED: July 28, 1998
VOID AFTER FOUR YEARS

WARRANT TO PURCHASE
COMMON STOCK OF
COST-U-LESS, INC.
COST-U-LESS, INC.
COMMON STOCK
PURCHASE WARRANT
RECITALS

A. The Company and Commonwealth Development Corporation ("CDC") are
developing an ongoing business relationship, including Kula Fund Limited ("Kula
Fund"), an affiliate of CDC, making an investment in the Company and the Company
appointing a representative of CDC to its Board of Director.
B. In furtherance of such business relationship, the Company is issuing
warrants to purchase the Common Stock to Kula Fund.
AGREEMENT
THIS IS TO CERTIFY that, for value received and subject to the terms and
conditions hereof, Kula Fund Limited, or such person to whom this Warrant is
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transferred pursuant to Section 7 hereof (the "Holder"), is entitled to exercise
this Warrant to purchase either (i) 117,000 fully paid and nonassessable shares
of Common Stock, (collectively, the "Warrant Stock") of COST-U-LESS, INC., a
Washington corporation (the "Company"), at the price of $___ per share (the
"Exercise Price") [120% of initial public offering price] (such number of shares
and the Exercise Price being subject to adjustment as provided herein).
This Warrant is subject to the following additional terms and conditions:
1.

Method of Exercise
1.1

Procedure for Exercise

This Warrant may be exercised by the Holder, at any time after the date
hereof but not later than July __, 2002 (the "Exercise Period"), in whole or in
part, by delivering to the Company (i) this Warrant certificate, (ii) except as
provided in Section 1.2 below, a bank check payable to the Company in the amount
of the Exercise Price multiplied by the number of shares for which this Warrant
is being exercised (the "Purchase Price"), and (iii) the form of Election to
Purchase attached hereto duly completed and executed by the Holder. Upon
exercise, the Holder will be deemed to be the holder of record of the Warrant
Stock for which exercise is made, even though the transfer or registrar books of
the Company may then be closed or certificates representing such Warrant Stock
may not then be actually delivered to the Holder.
1.2

Net Exercise Rights

Notwithstanding the payment provisions set forth above, the Holder may
elect to receive Warrant Stock in an amount equal to the value (as determined
below) of this Warrant or the portion hereof being exercised by surrender of
this Warrant at the principal office of the Company, together with notice of
such election, in which case the Company shall issue to the Holder the number of
shares of Warrant Stock determined as follows:
-2X =

Where:

Y (A-B)
----------A

X = the number of shares of Warrant Stock to be issued to the Holder
Y = the number of shares of Warrant Stock subject to this Warrant
A = the Fair Market Value (as defined below) of one (1) share of
Warrant Stock
B = the Exercise Price

For purposes of the above calculation, the fair market value of a share of
Warrant Stock shall be determined in good faith by the Board of Directors of the
Company; provided, however, that if a public market for the Company's Common
Stock exists at the time of such exercise, then such fair market value shall be
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(i) the average of the closing bid and asked prices of the Company's Common
Stock as quoted in the Over-the-Counter Market Summary or the last reported sale
price of the Common Stock or the closing price quoted on the Nasdaq National
Market System or on any exchange on which such Common Stock is then listed,
whichever is applicable, for the five (5) trading days prior to the date of
exercise of such net exercise rights.
2.

Delivery of Stock Certificates

Within ten days after the payment of the Exercise Price following the
exercise of this Warrant (in whole or in part), the Company at its expense shall
issue in the name of and deliver to the Holder (a) a certificate or certificates
for the number of fully paid and nonassessable shares of Warrant Stock to which
the Holder shall be entitled upon such exercise and payment, and (b) a new
Warrant of like tenor to purchase up to that number of shares of Warrant Stock,
if any, not previously purchased by the Holder if this Warrant has not expired.
The Holder shall for all purposes be deemed to have become the holder of record
of such shares of Warrant Stock on the date by which this Warrant was
surrendered and payment of the Exercise Price was made, irrespective of the date
of delivery of the certificate or certificates representing the Warrant Stock;
provided that, if the date by which such surrender and payment is made is a date
when the stock transfer books of the Company are closed, such person shall be
deemed to have become the holder of record of such shares of Warrant Stock at
the close of business on the next succeeding date on which the stock transfer
books are open.
-33.

Covenants as to Warrant Stock

The Company covenants and agrees that all the shares of Warrant Stock
issued pursuant to the terms of this Warrant will, upon their issuance, be
validly issued and outstanding, fully paid and nonassessable.
4.

Reorganization

Upon a merger, consolidation, acquisition of all or substantially all of
the property or stock, reorganization or liquidation of the Company
(collectively, a "Reorganization") during the Exercise Period, as a result of
which the shareholders of the Company receive cash, stock or other property in
exchange for their shares of Common Stock, as part of such Reorganization,
lawful provision shall be made so that the Holder shall thereafter be entitled
to receive upon exercise of its rights to purchase Warrant Stock, the number of
shares of preferred stock or other securities of the successor corporation
resulting from such Reorganization, to which a holder of the Warrant Stock
deliverable upon exercise of the right to purchase securities hereunder would
have been entitled in such Reorganization if the right to purchase such
securities had been exercised immediately prior to such Reorganization. In any
such case, appropriate adjustment (as determined in good faith by the Company's
Board of Directors) shall be made in the application of the provisions of this
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Warrant with respect to the rights and interest of the Holder after the
Reorganization to the end that the provisions of this Warrant (including
adjustments of the Exercise Price and the number of securities purchasable
pursuant to the terms of this Warrant) shall be applicable after that event, as
near as reasonably may be, in relation to any shares deliverable after that
event upon the exercise of the Holder's rights to purchase securities pursuant
to this Warrant.
5.

Adjustments for Stock Splits, Etc.

If the Company shall issue any shares of Common Stock as a stock dividend
or subdivide the number of outstanding shares of Common Stock into a greater
number of shares, then, in either such case, the Exercise Price in effect before
such dividend or subdivision shall be proportionately reduced and the number of
shares of Warrant Stock at that time purchasable pursuant to this Warrant shall
be proportionately increased; and, conversely, if the Company shall contract the
number of outstanding shares of Common Stock by combining such shares into a
smaller number of shares, then the Exercise Price in effect before such
combination shall be proportionately increased and the number of shares of
Warrant Stock at that time purchasable pursuant to this Warrant shall be
proportionately decreased. Each adjustment in the number of shares of Warrant
Stock purchasable hereunder shall be to the nearest whole share.
-46.

Notice of Adjustments

Whenever the Exercise Price or the number of securities purchasable under
the terms of this Warrant at that Exercise Price shall be adjusted pursuant to
the terms of this Warrant, the Company shall promptly notify the Holder in
writing of such adjustment, setting forth in reasonable detail the event
requiring the adjustment, the amount of the adjustment, the method by which such
adjustment was calculated, and the Exercise Price and number of shares of
Warrant Stock or other securities purchasable at that Exercise Price after
giving effect to such adjustment. Such notice shall be mailed (by first class
and postage prepaid) to the registered Holder.
In the event of:
(a) The taking by the Company of a record of the holders of any class of
securities of the Company for the purpose of determining the holders thereof who
are entitled to receive any dividend or other distribution, or any right to
subscribe for, purchase or otherwise acquire any shares of stock of any class of
any other securities or property, or to receive any other right,
(b) Any capital reorganization of the Company, any reclassification or
recapitalization of the capital stock of the Company or any transfer of all or
substantially all of the assets of the Company to any other person or any
consolidation or merger involving the company, or
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(c) Any voluntary or involuntary dissolution, liquidation, or winding-up of
the Company,
the Company will mail to the Holder, at its last address at least ten (10) days
prior to the earlier date specified therein as described below, a notice
specifying:
(1) The date on which any such record is to be taken for the purpose
of such dividend, distribution or right, and the amount and character of such
dividend, distribution or right; and
(2) The date on which any such reorganization, reclassification,
transfer, consolidation, merger, dissolution, liquidation or winding-up is
expected to become effective and the record date for determining stockholders
entitled to vote thereon.
7.

Fractional Shares

No fractional shares shall be issued upon the exercise of this Warrant. In
lieu of fractional shares, the Company shall pay the Holder a sum in cash equal
to the fair
-5market value of the fractional shares (as determined by the Company's Board of
Directors) on the date of exercise.
8.

Restrictions on Transfer

Neither this Warrant nor the Warrant Stock may be transferred unless (a)
such transfer is registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the
"Securities Act"), and any applicable state securities or blue sky laws, (b) the
Company has received a legal opinion reasonably satisfactory to the Company to
the effect that the transfer is exempt from the prospectus delivery and
registration requirements of the Securities Act and any applicable state
securities or blue sky laws, or (c) the Company otherwise satisfies itself that
such transfer is exempt from registration.
9.

Legend

A legend setting forth or referring to the above restrictions shall be
placed on this Warrant, any replacement hereof or any certificate representing
the Warrant Stock, and a stop transfer restriction or order shall be placed on
the books of the Company and with any transfer agent until such securities may
be legally sold or otherwise transferred.
10.

Holder as Owner
The Company may deem and treat the holder of record of this Warrant as the
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absolute owner hereof for all purposes regardless of any notice to the contrary.
11.

No Shareholder Rights

This Warrant shall not entitle the Holder to any voting rights or any other
rights as a shareholder of the Company or to any other rights whatsoever except
the rights stated herein; and no dividend or interest shall be payable or shall
accrue in respect of this Warrant or the Warrant Stock until and to the extent
that this Warrant shall be exercised.
12.

Construction

The validity and interpretation of the terms and provisions of this Warrant
shall be governed by the laws of the State of Washington. The descriptive
headings of the several sections of this Warrant are inserted for convenience
only and shall not control or affect the meaning or construction of any of the
provisions thereof.
-613.

Exchange of Warrant

This Warrant is exchangeable upon the surrender hereof by the Holder at the
office of the Company for new Warrants of like tenor representing in the
aggregate the rights to subscribe for and purchase the number of shares which
may be subscribed for and purchased hereunder, each of such new Warrants to
represent the right to subscribe for and purchase such number of shares as shall
be designated by the Holder at the time of such surrender.
14.

Lost Warrant Certificate

Upon receipt by the Company of satisfactory evidence of the loss, theft,
destruction or mutilation of this Warrant and either (in the case of loss, theft
or destruction) reasonable indemnification or (in the case of mutilation) the
surrender of this Warrant for cancellation, the Company will execute and deliver
to the Holder, without charge, a new Warrant of like denomination.
15.

Waivers and Amendments

This Warrant or any provision hereof may be changed, waived, discharged or
terminated only by a statement in writing signed by the party against which
enforcement of the change, waiver, discharge or termination is sought.
16.

Notices

All notices or other communications required or permitted hereunder shall
be in writing and shall be delivered by personal delivery, reputable overnight
courier service, telecopier or mailed by United States mail, first-class
postage prepaid, or by registered or certified mail with return receipt
requested, addressed as follows:
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If to the Holder:
Kula Fund Limited
2nd Floor, Law House
Kumul Highway
PO Box 166
Port Vila, Vanuatu
Attention: Liam Cully
If to the Company:
COST-U-LESS, INC.
12410 S.E. 32nd Street
Bellevue, WA 98005
-7Each of the foregoing parties shall be entitled to specify a different
address by giving five days' advance written notice as aforesaid to the other
parties.
17.

Investment Intent

By accepting this Warrant, the Holder represents that it is acquiring this
Warrant for investment and not with a view to, or for sale in connection with,
any distribution thereof.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has executed this Warrant as of the date
first written above.
COST-U-LESS, INC.
By /s/ MICHAEL J. ROSE
-------------------------Michael J. Rose, President
-8ELECTION TO PURCHASE
To____________________:
The undersigned hereby irrevocably elects to purchase ___________ shares
(the "Shares") of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of the within
Warrants, and requests that certificates for such shares shall be issued in the
name of and delivered to the address of the undersigned, at the address stated
below and, if said number of shares shall not be all the shares which may be
purchased pursuant to the within Warrants, that new Warrants evidencing the
right to purchase the balance of such shares be registered in the name of, and
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delivered to, the undersigned at the address stated below. The undersigned
hereby agrees with and represents to the Company as follows:
(a) The Purchaser acknowledges that the Shares have not been and will
not be registered under the 1933 Act, or any applicable state securities law,
and therefore constitute "restricted securities" within the meaning of Rule 144
thereof, and that the contemplated issuance may not be offered or sold in the
United States or for the account or benefit of U.S. Persons (as described below)
in reliance on an exclusion from such registration pursuant to Regulation S of
the 1933 Act;
(b) The Purchaser understands that if it decides to offer, sell or
otherwise transfer any of the Shares, it will not offer, sell or otherwise
transfer any of such securities, directly or indirectly, unless (i) the
disposition is to the Company; (ii) the disposition is made outside the United
States in compliance with the requirements of Rule 903 or Rule 904 of Regulation
S, if available (or such successor rule or regulation as then in effect); (iii)
there is in effect a registration statement under the 1933 Act covering such
proposed disposition and such disposition is made in accordance with such
registration statement and any applicable state securities laws; (iv) the
disposition complies in all respects with Rule 144 or Rule 145 under the 1933
Act and any applicable state securities laws, or (v) in a transaction that does
not require registration under the 1933 Act and any applicable state securities
laws and it has, prior to such disposition, furnished to the Company an opinion
of counsel of recognized standing reasonably satisfactory to the Company;
(c) The Purchaser will not engage in hedging transactions with regard
to the Shares during the one year "distribution compliance period" beginning on
the date of the Closing unless in compliance with the 1933 Act;

(d) The Purchaser (i) is not a U.S. Person (as such term is defined in
Regulation S) and is not acquiring the Shares for the account or benefit of a
U.S. Person and (ii) was not offered, did not execute and did not deliver this
Agreement while in the United States;
(e) The Shares are being acquired for investment purposes, not as a
nominee or agent, and not with a view to any resale, distribution or other
disposition of the Shares, of any part thereof, in violation of the 1933 Act or
applicable state securities laws;
(f) The Purchaser is an "accredited investor" as that term is defined
in Rule (501(a) under the 1934 Act, has such knowledge, sophistication and
experience in business and financial matters so as to be capable of evaluating
the merits and risks of the prospective investment in the Shares, has so
evaluated the merits and risks of such investment and is able to bear the
economic risk of such investment and , at the present time, is able to afford a
complete loss of such investment.
(g) The Purchaser understands that upon the original issuance thereof,
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and until such time as the same is no longer required under applicable
requirements of the 1933 Act or applicable state securities laws, certificates
representing the Shares, and all certificates issued in exchange therefore or in
substitution thereof, shall bear the following legend:
THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE
UNITED STATES SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "SECURITIES ACT"),
AND MAY BE OFFERED, SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED ONLY (A) TO THE COMPANY,
(B) OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES IN ACCORDANCE WITH RULE 903 OR RULE 904 OF
REGULATION S UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, IF AVAILABLE, (C) PURSUANT TO AN
EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND IN COMPLIANCE
WITH ANY APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS, (D) IN A TRANSACTION THAT
COMPLIES IN ALL RESPECTS WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF RULE 144 OR RULE 145
UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, IF AVAILABLE, AND IN COMPLIANCE WITH ANY STATE
SECURITIES LAWS, (E) IN A TRANSACTION THAT DOES NOT REQUIRE REGISTRATION
UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND ANY APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS AND,
PRIOR TO SUCH DISPOSITION, THE HOLDER HAS FURNISHED TO THE COMPANY AN
OPINION OF COUNSEL OF RECOGNIZED STANDING REASONABLY SATISFACTORY TO THE
COMPANY.
-2THE HOLDER HEREOF MAY NOT ENGAGE IN ANY HEDGING TRANSACTIONS WITH
RESPECT TO THE SECURITIES EVIDENCED HEREBY FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR FROM
THE DATE OF ORIGINAL ISSUANCE UNLESS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE SECURITIES ACT.
(i) The Purchaser acknowledges that the Company will refuse to register any
transfer of the Shares if such transfer is not made in accordance with the
legend set forth in subparagraph (f) above.
Payment enclosed in the amount of $____________________
Dated:__________, 19__
Name of holder of Warrants:______________________________________________
(please print)
Address:

_____________________________________
_____________________________________

Signature: _____________________________________
-3ASSIGNMENT
For value received ____________________ hereby sells, assigns and transfers
unto _____________________________ the within Warrants, together with all right,
Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

title and interest therein, and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint
____________________ attorney, to transfer said Warrants on the books of the
within-named Company, with full power of substitution in the premises.
Dated:________________, 19__
________________________________
________________________________
________________________________
________________________________
________________________________
________________________________
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EXHIBIT 10.26
FINAL AGREEMENT
LEASE AGREEMENT
This indenture made this 19/th/ day of February 1999, by and between: CARIBE
LUMBER & TRADING N.V. (ST. MAARTEN) with offices on St. Maarten, hereinafter
referred to as "The Lessor".
and
CUL SINT MAARTEN N.V. established and with offices on St. Maarten, Netherlands
Antilles, hereinafter referred to as the "Lessee".
WITNESSETH:
Whereas the Lessor is the owner of the property located at THE BUSH ROAD,
CUL-DE-SAC, ST. MAARTEN N.A. MEETBRIEF # 13/1996 consisting of 12,650M2 (Minus
land to be surveyed for buildings of the "Bigger the Better" and "Fairplay Trust
Company,"). Plus part of the adjoining land described in MEETBRIEF # 67/1967,
plus part of the adjoining road described in MEETBRIEF # 100/1974 to be surveyed
for a total amount of 12,800M2 hereinafter referred to as the "premises". The
total measurement will be surveyed and described in exhibit A, which will be an
integral part of this document.
Whereas, the Lessor is desirous of leasing the premises to the Lessee, as The
latter is desirous of leasing same from the former, under the following
stipulations, covenants and conditions.
NOW THEREFORE, IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED UPON AS FOLLOWS:
1.0

TERMS OF THE LEASE.
-------------------

(a) This agreement is entered into for a period of 25 years, commencing on
February 26, 1999 and consequently ending on February 25, 2024.
(b) The Lessee will have the option to renew this lease agreement for three (3)
further ten (10) year periods.
(c) The Lessee shall have the right of first refusal in the event the Lessor
wishes to sell the property. The purchase price shall be determined by the
market prices and trend at such time.
2.0

RENTAL PAYMENTS.
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(a) CUL will pay a rental rate of US$1.25 per M2 per month for 12,800 M2 at a
total rate of US$16,000 per month for the first three years.

FINAL AGREEMENT
(b) The first year of rental US$192,000.00 (one hundred and ninety two thousand
United States Dollars) shall be paid into an escrow account, at Remax\Island
Properties bank in St. Maarten, on the date of signing of the lease. Upon
successful removal, of all of the below mentioned Contingencies, and before the
commencement of the site work, this amount shall be paid in full to the Lessor.
(c) The Lessee agrees to pay a monthly rent, at the beginning of each month,
without offset, deduction or prior demand, to the Lessor of US$16,000 (sixteen
thousand United States Dollars) per month for year two (2) and year three (3).
(d) At the beginning of the fourth year and at the beginning of each consecutive
three year period, the `rent' will increase based on the CPI price Index
published for the United States, for the duration of the Lease.
3

THE CONTINGENCIES:
-----------------

1) The Landlord must provide CUL proof in writing that the site and buildings
To be removed are free of hazardous waste material.
2)

The Landlord will mark all points of admeasurement.

3)

CUL to obtain acceptable results from soil boring tests conducted by CUL.

4)

CUL to obtain acceptable results from topographical survey.

5) CUL to successfully obtain all necessary building permits to complete this
project.
6) CUL to successfully obtain all necessary business licenses to operate in St.
Maarten.
7)

CUL is responsible for existing structures to be removed.

4

UTILITIES
---------

(a) Electric power to 100 amps, city water, telephone and cable t.v. lines are
provided to the property line.
(b) The Lessee will be solely responsible for the installation, provision and
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prompt payment of all utilities (inclusive of gas, electricity, etc.) used or
consumed, as well as the use and disposal of garbage and septic on the premises,
as well as related costs and charges.
(c) In no event will the Lessor be liable for an interruption of or a failure in
the supply of any utility.
(d) CUL shall install a septic system to suit their requirements.
FINAL AGREEMENT
(e) CUL will develop the entire 12,800M2 site, including all necessary site
work, parking lot, parking lot lighting and construction of a 36,000 square foot
metal building.
5

CONSTRUCTION
------------

(a) The Lessee has the right to develop the leased land, as it feels fit and
appropriate, provided, that the Lessee submits itself to the following
restrictive covenants:
(I) no unlawful or offensive use that may constitute a nuisance shall be
made or permitted on or upon the leased property.
(II) no animals, poultry or livestock of any kind shall be raised, bred or
kept on the leased property, except domestic animals.
(III) The leased property shall not be used as a dumping ground for
rubbish, trash, garbage and other waste shall not be kept or dumped, excepting
covered cans and containers, which shall be disclosed from view, from the roads
and adjoining properties. Unsightly objects, shall not be allowed to be placed
or suffered to remain on the leased property.
(IV) The land may be used for commercial and business purposes, whereas, it
is the understanding between parties that the Lessee will use the premises for a
retail and wholesale trade in foods, beverages, and all other products normally
sold in supermarkets.
(b) Lessee will, at all times, keep the premises in good order, condition and
repair. All costs connected therewith, including, those incurred due to repairs
of structural defects, will be borne by the Lessee.
(c) Lessee will obtain and pay for any and all permits, licenses and permission
required and necessary for the construction intended.
(d) At the end of this agreement the Lessee will have no claim, whatsoever
against the Lessor in connection with the building constructed. Lessee will have
no right to compensation for the construction or the value of the building by
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the Lessor.
(e) Lessee will pay any and all governmental taxes and longlease rent
("erfpachtcanon") burdening the premises, if and when such is levied.
(f) At the end of this lease agreement the Lessee will have the right to remove
all trade fixtures, including, but not limited to, walk in coolers and freezers,
including compressors and coils, cash registers, all computer equipment, steel
racking, auxiliary generator, overhead lighting, all meat and produce cases.
FINAL AGREEMENT
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OBJECTIVES, RESTRICTIONS AND LIABILITIES:
-----------------------------------------

(a) The immovable property is being leased to the Lessee free from any any
mortgage and/or seizures and all other debts.
(b) The Lessee will indemnify and save the Lessor harmless from and against any
and all claims actions, damages, liability and expenses in connection with the
loss of life, personal injury and or damages to persons or property arising from
or out of any occurrence in, upon or at the premises. In the event the Lessor is
without fault on his/her/its part, made a party to any litigation commenced by,
or against Lessee, the Lessee will protect and hold the Lessor harmless and pay
all reasonable counsel and legal fees, incurred, or paid by the Lessor, in
connection with such litigation. The Lessor and/or his agents will indemnify and
save the Lessee harmless, from and against any and all claims, actions, damages,
liability and expenses in connection with the loss of life, personal injury and
or damages to persons, or property arising from or out of any occurrence caused
by negligence of Lessor and or its agents, upon or at the premises.
(c) The Lessee will also pay all costs, expenses and reasonable counsel and
legal fees incurred or paid by the Lessor in enforcing the covenants, conditions
and provisions of this agreement against the Lessee.
(d) If Lessee subdivides, or transfers parts of the leased land to third
parties, permission must be asked and given in writing from the Lessor. Lessee
will still be responsible for payment of the lease rent to Grantor and for the
enforcement of the restrictive covenants and other obligations of Lessee arising
from this lease, on the assigns and successors of Lessee. The appeasers declared
that the aforementioned quoted conditions are considered to be incorporated
literally in this lease and to form an integral part thereof. The appeasers
furthermore declared that the obligations resulting from these quoted
conditions, are herewith imposed by Lessor, upon Lessee in this Lease and are
accepted in behalf of those beneficiaries and in the manner as stated in these
conditions.
7

DEFAULT
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(a) Upon payment of the rent herein provided and upon the observances and
performance of all the terms, covenants and conditions on the Lessee's part to
be performed and observed, the Lessee shall peaceably and quietly hold and enjoy
the premises for the duration of this agreement, without hindrance or
interruption by the Lessor, or any other persons, or party lawfully or equitable
claiming, through or under the Lessor, subject, nevertheless, to the conditions
of this agreement.
(b)

In the event of any failure by the Lessee to pay, any rent due under

FINAL AGREEMENT
this agreement, or in the event of failure by the Lessee to perform any of the
other conditions of this agreement, for a period of sixty (60) days after
written notice from the Lessor, or if the Lessee will abandon the premises, the
Lessor, in addition to all other rights and remedies that maybe legally
available, will have the right of immediate re-entry and may remove all persons
and property, at the expense of the Lessee, all without service of notice or
resort to Court actions, or becoming liable for any loss or damage, which may be
occasioned thereby.
8

INSURANCE
---------

(a) The Lessee shall insure its physical premises constructed and leased hereby
against all liabilities and risks.
(b) The Insurance to be contracted by the Lessee must, in addition to the
aforementioned, also cover the removal of debris from the premises in the event
of any damage to the premises.
9

GOVERNING LAW AND FINAL PROVISIONS:
-----------------------------------

(a) This agreement will be governed by the Laws of the Netherlands Antilles and
will inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties, their heirs,
assigns and respective successors.
(b) The waiver by the Lessor of any breach of any condition herein contained,
will not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach thereof. Subsequent
acceptance of rent will not be considered a waiver of any preceding breach of
any condition of this agreement.
(c) If any condition of this agreement or the application thereof to any
extent, should be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this agreement will
be valid and be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by Law.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF Parties have executed this agreement on the date first
abovementioned.
/s/ Charles Vlaun
-----------------------------The Lessor
Mr. Charles Vlaun
Managing Director
Caribe Lumber & Trading N.V.

/s/ Michael J. Rose
---------------------------The Lessee
Mr. Michael J. Rose
C.E.O. Cost U Less
U.S.A.
____________________________
Managing Director
Ramcor N.V. dba CUL Sint Maarten N.V.
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EXHIBIT 21.1
SUBSIDIARIES OF COST-U-LESS, INC.
AS OF MARCH 20, 1999
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
State of Incorporation
or Country in Which
Subsidiary
Organized
---------------------------------------------------------------------------<S>
<C>
CULGUAM, Inc.
Guam
CULUSVI, Inc.
USVI
CULSAMOA, Inc.
American Samoa
CULNEV, Inc.
Nevada
CUL (CURACAO), NV
Netherlands Antilles
CULNZ, Ltd
New Zealand
CUL (FIJI), Ltd
Fiji
CUL (Saint Martin), NV
Netherlands Antilles
CUL (ARUBA), NV
Netherlands Antilles
</TABLE>
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<TABLE> <S> <C>

<ARTICLE> 5
<MULTIPLIER> 1,000
<S>
<PERIOD-TYPE>
<FISCAL-YEAR-END>
<PERIOD-START>
<PERIOD-END>
<CASH>
<SECURITIES>
<RECEIVABLES>
<ALLOWANCES>
<INVENTORY>
<CURRENT-ASSETS>
<PP&E>
<DEPRECIATION>
<TOTAL-ASSETS>
<CURRENT-LIABILITIES>
<BONDS>
<PREFERRED-MANDATORY>
<PREFERRED>
<COMMON>
<OTHER-SE>
<TOTAL-LIABILITY-AND-EQUITY>
<SALES>
<TOTAL-REVENUES>
<CGS>
<TOTAL-COSTS>
<OTHER-EXPENSES>
<LOSS-PROVISION>
<INTEREST-EXPENSE>
<INCOME-PRETAX>
<INCOME-TAX>
<INCOME-CONTINUING>
<DISCONTINUED>
<EXTRAORDINARY>
<CHANGES>
<NET-INCOME>
<EPS-PRIMARY>
<EPS-DILUTED>

<C>
YEAR
DEC-27-1998
DEC-29-1997
DEC-27-1998
4,289
0
1,839
(143)
16,685
23,548
16,535
(3,823)
37,217
14,307
0
0
0
12,305
7,291
37,217
133,861
133,861
111,537
20,224
10
0
257
1,833
640
1,193
0
0
0
1,193
0.45
0.43

</TABLE>
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